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INTRODUCTION
as far back as 2008, the Chris Hani district municipality developed the Chris Hani Regional development strategy 2008 
(CHReds 2008-2013), which proposed the development of an economic development agency to be mandated with 
specific focus areas in line with the overall strategic objectives of the district municipality and in respect of prioritised areas 
of intervention. in 2011 the Chris Hani district municipality also adopted a “district developmental agenda” that seeks to 
guide development in its area of jurisdiction. 

the Chris Hani development agency (CHda) was then established in 2012 by a Council resolution dated 27th march 
2012 in terms of the municipal systems amendment act No. 44 of 2003, Companies amendment act, No 3 of 2011 and 
municipal finance management act, No. 56 of 2003, with the purpose of assisting the Chris Hani district municipality in 
fulfilling its development agenda.

the CHda has since then positioned itself as a symbol of hope within the Chris Hani district for the realisation of a better 
and economically sustainable future through genuine development of human capital and leveraging of physical and natural 
resources and heritage.

the CHda has adopted the roles of an adviser, facilitator, and enabler for public and private co-operation, an entry point for 
regional economic development and a one stop service point for investment opportunities.

The Agency is committed to the realisation of a reduction 
in both poverty and unemployment in the region through 
the adoption of the strategy of:
•	 creating	a	viable	organisation	(established	 
 administration, processes and governance), 
•	 creating	viable	agricultural	clusters	(established	 
 agriculture and agro-processing activities and related  
 value chains), 
•	 focusing	on	partnerships	and	stakeholder	engagement	 
 to realise synergies on development initiatives

the outcome to date has been the establishment of  
the agency and the development of a comprehensive 
programming unit within the agency, fully committed to 
implementation of economic development initiatives through 
mainly agriculture and agro-processing, skills development 
programmes, and investment promotion activities geared 
towards creating self-sustaining rural economies, jobs, 
employability of residents in various key sectors, as well as 
establishment of new business.

Vision
The Agency Aspires To be An economic deVelopmenT 
cATAlysT And co-ordinATor for The reAlisATion of 
The economic growTh of The chris hAni region MISSION

The Agency will 
unlock The economic 
poTenTiAl of The 
region by AccelerATing 
implemenTATion of 
idenTified high impAcT 
prioriTy progrAmmes 
bAsed on The nATurAl 
resources, people And 
cApAbiliTies wiThin The 
deVelopmenT corridors 

VAlues & gUIdINg PRINcIPLES
The Agency sTriVes To AcT professionAlly AT All 
Times. To This end, The Agency Adheres To The 
following guiding principles And VAlues:

•	 Commitment	
•	 Honesty	
•	 Respect	

•	 Innovation
•	 Sincerity	
•	 Humanity	

•	 Accountability
•	 Nurturing	
•	 Innovation	
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economic development finance is a strategic and a 
powerful tool in the fight against poverty, unemployment 
and inequality within the Chris Hani district municipality. 
successful development agencies throughout south africa 
have, depending on their mandates, made significant 
contributions to economic expansion, sector development, 
industry renewal, enterprise growth, transformation and 
inclusive development, among other economic and societal 
goals. the Chris Hani development agency is one example 
and carries the mandate of economic development within 
the district.

in 2014/15 the chris district municipality continued to 
lead the economic development through an integrated 
approach between the integrated planning and  
economic development directorate and the chris hani 
development Agency. our economic development 
programmes and humanitarian initiatives, through the 
bursary fund amongst others, had deep development 
impact in the community despite some challenges and 
this calls for speed in implementation, innovation in 
conceptualising programmes and efficiency in utilising 
scarce resources.

improving the lives of the Chris Hani district municipality 
people is ultimately the best long-term solution for dealing 
with the root causes of problems that affect us here, such 
as poverty, inequality, and unemployment. On prosperity, 
driving enterprise development and jobs is critical for 
supporting the economic expansion and markets of the 
future for Chris Hani district municipality business in other 
areas of south africa.

We continue to achieve against our commitments. by the 
end of 2014/15 the agency had provided agricultural inputs 
for the harvesting, completed land preparation and planting 
activities in the 2014/2015 cropping season and planted 
800 hectares of maize in the Qamata and bilatye irrigation 
schemes. a total of 20 learners are currently having their 
tertiary studies funded by the mayor’s bursary fund being 

administered by the agency. the students are enrolled 
for various qualifications in agriculture, mechatronics, 
engineering, tourism studies and information technology 
and related fields. for the year under review, a total of R1.1 
million expenditure was realised in the provision of student 
accommodation, school books and stationery, as well as 
tuition and food stipends to bursary fund participants. apart 
from the above the learners were also provided with laptop 
computers. the agency has been further tasked to expand 
the resources available to the youth in order to improve their 
skills. by supporting programmes and good governance in 
the district, we are standing up for the values we believe 
in. Our investment in economic development is helping the 
Chris Hani district municipality to stand tall in the eastern 
Cape and south africa.

the agency continues to scale up and broaden its work 
on inclusive growth and jobs. economic development is 
unequivocally the only way we can end generational poverty 
and grant dependency for good. We will be making it easier 
for job-creating entrepreneurs and small businesses in the 
district to grow their businesses through the development 
of the agri-parks and other economic means. there are 
however, many challenges within the communities and other 
community support structures - some have long historical 
backgrounds and others may be due to short-sightedness. 
these are not unique to any place where economic 
development efforts are being made but need unique area 
specific solutions. the district municipality and the agency 
are working on sustainable solutions for these challenges. 

i must thank the council, particularly the mmc respon-
sible for local economic development and the board of 
the Agency for their support and effort in achieving the 
progress we have made so far. i am particularly humbled 
by the fact that you have entrusted me with the respon-
sibility to lead. Thank you

MXOLISI kOyO
eXeCUTIVe MAyOR
cHRIS HANI dISTRIcT MUNIcIPALITY

CNLR MXOLIsI kOyO
EXEcUTIVE MAYOR

cHRIS HANI dISTRIcT MUNIcIPALITY

17 december 2014 

MAYOR’S
FOReWORD
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MLULAMI MANJeZI
ChAIRpeRsON OF The BOARD
cHRIS HANI dISTRIcT MUNIcIPALITY

cHAIRPERSON’S 
sTATeMeNT

economic development at local government level is one 
of the primary linkages of development between the 
district municipality and the community, with conflicting 
expectations and demands for greater efficiencies and 
agility. The mandate of the chris hani development 
Agency seeks to balance the stringent legislative  
expectations with demands of the community for 
greater efficiencies and agility through facilitating and  
delivering economic services in order to expand 
employment, eradicate poverty and reduce inequality 
within the chris hani district municipality. This called 
for the development of a long term strategy with clear 
objectives to guide management and the Agency.   

sTrATegy
the board developed and approved the strategy of the 
agency for the next five years 2014 - 2019. the shareholder 
and other stakeholders will be able to retrace the achievement 
of the strategic objectives in the current and future annual 
reports for the next five years. the board is aware of the 
dynamism of the environment within which the agency 
operates and has committed to review the strategy on an 
annual basis in order to ensure that it is adapted accordingly.

the agency’s mandate is to promote economic development 
and growth through its involvement in preparing, facilitating, 
funding or delivering impactful development projects and 
programmes within the Chris Hani district municipality. 

in an effort to remain focused the five year strategic plan 
identified three strategic goals that is that of a proficient 
and viable institution, viable and sustainable clusters and 
partnership building and stakeholder relations. management 
have made strides in achieving these goals through, amongst 
others, achieving an unqualified audit opinion from the  
auditor general (see pages 58-60), developing impactful projects 
in primary agriculture and the environment (see pages 14-19) and 
have engaged the communities and stakeholders through 
social facilitation programmes and investor conferences 

(see pages 23-26). the strategic enablers which will assist 
the agency in delivering on these goals have been identified 
and are in the process of being implemented under the 
watchful eye of the board.

POLIcIES
since the inception of the organisation the board has 
conceptualised and approved several policies to guide 
decisions and achieve rational outcomes and to assist in 
both subjective (assist senior management with decisions 
that must consider the relative merits of a number of factors 
before making decisions and as a result are often hard to 
objectively test) and objective (usually operational in nature 
and can be objectively tested) decision making - in other 
words these policies merely guide actions toward those that 
are most likely to achieve a desired outcome. in the current 
financial year a total of eight polices were developed (see 
pages 35). all the policies are taken to be living documents 
and will be reviewed continually. the board will ensure that 
these reviews are done systematically and are in the best 
interest of the organisation. 

goVernAnce
the board of directors of the agency has a dual mandate 
firstly, that of being an advisor in the sense that it consults 
with management regarding the strategic and operational 
direction of the agency and secondly, it monitors the 
agency performance to ensure that it operates within the 
approved budget and achieves the set performance targets. 
the agency board in the year under consideration has 
satisfied both these functions. 

the governance structures have been set up and are 
functional as evidenced by the unqualified audit report and 
the Chief executive Officer on a five year performance based 
contract. the board has set up three sub-committees that is
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audit, risk and ethics (the primary purpose of the audit, Risk 
and ethics Committee is to assist the agency by fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities to ensure that the organisation has 
and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems 
of financial, risk management, governance and internal 
control), human resources and remuneration (the primary 
purpose of the Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee is to assist the agency by ensuring the human 
resource and the attendant systems are operating efficiently 
and optimally) and projects and investment (the focus of the 
committee is on matters relating to, or having a bearing on 
the overall financial management and business development 

performance of the agency) (see page 30) and it is now in 
the process of strengthening these committees as the 
agency’s implementation programme gains momentum.  
this year, we have included extensive reports from each of 
the committees to indicate their roles and responsibilities 
(see page 30).

the board will look to build on this progress during 2015–16. 
five meetings were held by the board in the 2014/15 
financial year. i wish to thank all board members for the 
contributions they have made throughout this period of 
accelerated implementation.

PERFORMANcE
in the year 2014/15 the Agency has improved its performance from the previous financial year and over achieved in 
almost seventy five percent of its targets. The board wishes to thank management and staff for this achievement and 
encourage them to continue with the splendid work they are doing. The major areas of emphasis, amongst others, 
as the Agency accelerates implementation should be risk management, fund raising and resource mobilisation, 
ensure that the work being done in the irrigation schemes is fully supported by the communities through extensive 
and in-depth social mobilisation and ensure fast tracked skills development through the bursary fund.

ouTlook 
in the district, the agency will continue to centre its 
development efforts through facilitating social cohesion 
and economic development particularly in areas where it is 
implementing projects. the focus will be mainly in corridor 
development, irrigation schemes, agri-parks and building 
strategic partnership. While the agency understands that 
the special economic Zones have already been identified 
it will continue to ensure that all the elements that make up 
these are taken into consideration in facilitating economic 
development. the board will in the future be involved in 
facilitating some of the economic development elements.

ChRIs hANI deVeLOPmeNt ageNCY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/1507



THUKELA MAshOLOgU
ChIeF eXeCUTIVe OFFICeR 
cHRIS HANI dEVELOPMENT Agency

cEO’S
RepORT

celebrating a successful 
first year of programme 
implementation
When reviewing the past year, quite a number of highlights 
indicate that this was a successful year for the agency. it 
has been a time of accelerating programme implementation 
and establishment of a competent operational team that 
is able and willing to serve the communities of the district. 
taking up the helm at CHda at the end of the 2013/2014 
financial year, i was fully conscious of the work ahead and 
the expectation of the shareholders - Chris Hani district 
municipality with its eight Local municipalities. One of the 
biggest hurdles i have had to overcome was balancing 
the establishing an institution that complies with all the 
legislative transcripts and ensuring efficient and seamless 
implementation of programmes and projects for the benefit 
of our communities. 

the agency had notable successes, and a number of challenges, 
but performance overall was satisfactory, with the realisation of 
74% of its performance targets for 2014/2015.

A clear strategic direction 
this was indeed a very important year for the agency, as it was 
the first year of implementing the new 5 year strategic Plan 
and kick-starting programme implementation. this year also 
saw a total review of the Organisational structure responding 
to the changing strategic direction, with the advent of new staff 
and new policies and procedures being implemented, as well 
as dedicated focus on performance objectives. 

 

programming and 
external operations
Whereas our mandate focuses our efforts on agriculture 
agri-business development and skills development, we  
geared ourselves up to participate in the entire district 
economic development landscape with the intention of 
working hand in hand with the development partners in 
achieving the Chris Hani development agenda through our 
special projects portfolio. 

the programming and external operations for the year 
focused on the strategic objective of the realisation of viable 
and sustainable economic clusters.  Key performance areas 
on the programming agenda for the agency in the year 
under review were:

•	 Resuscitation	of	irrigation	schemes
•	 Establishment	of	a	fully	operational	mechanisation	center
•	 Movement	towards	operationalisation	of	existing	grain	 
 silos for Qamata
•	 Building	of	the	relevant	skills	base	in	the	district	through	 
 the agency’s administration of the bursary fund, 
 learnership and internship programmes, as well as  
 hosting of career exhibitions
•	 Investment	promotions	and	SMME	development,	and 
 creation of new jobs and employment opportunities

The Agency hAd noTAble successes And A 
number of chAllenges, buT performAnce 

oVerAll wAs sATisfAcTory, wiTh The 
reAlisATion of 74% of iTs performAnce 

TArgeTs for 2014/2015.
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investment 
promotion 
and smme 
development 
in the area of investment promotion 
and smme development, the agency 
met all its set targets for the year under 
review. the agency, in partnership 
with the CHdm and CHCdC, hosted 
an investor round table conference in 
december 2014. this event invited 
various development partners and 
stakeholders to the district, and informed 
them on all investment potential and 

challenges for development in the district.  
this year, also in partnership with CHdm, 
COega and other stakeholders, we 
saw the finalisation of a feasibility study 
on the proposed special economic zone 
(seZ) for the Chris Hani district. taking 
the seZ feasibility to implementation 
saw the development of two business  
cases, one for the Queenstown industrial 
zone (made of Queendustria and ezibeleni  
industrial Complexes) and  the agripark 
business plan.

it has become apparent that the agency 
cannot solely rely on the Operational 
grant from the Chris Hani district 
municipality (CHdm) to achieve its 
goals and objectives. there is thus  

a secondary focus for innovative sourcing  
of complementary and co-funding oppor- 
tunities from other sources that include  
provincial and national government  
departments, dfi’s and donor organi-
sations within the development space.

in an attempt to raise additional income 
that will be used to finance both opera-
tional and developmental function, the  
agency has positioned itself for appoint-
ment as implementing agent for key 
strategic developmental projects at 
an agreed services fee. One project of 
this caliber is the Lukhanji Waste buy 
back Centers. 

Agency function and 
Other led Activities 

On the skills development front the agency is administering 
the mayor bursary fund that sees a total of 20 learners 
currently having their tertiary studies.

a total of four career exhibitions were held by the agency 
in engcobo, Cofimvaba, Queenstown and Lady frere in 
2014/2015.
  

in its partnerships with bigen africa and Crimson Co., the 
agency successfully implemented the Water and sanitation 
Learnership and internship programme. this programme 
saw a total of 175 youth from the district being trained in 
plumbing, water purification, reticulation and supervisory skills.

the success was enabled by the staffing of key positions 
in the projects unit to drive implementation, namely the 
appointment of the executive manager Operations (emO) as 
head of the programming unit. the Project manager: irrigation 
schemes, Project manager: agribusiness development  
and Project Officer: skills development. these appointments 
allowed for the formation of a fully-fledged projects unit, to 
help drive the agency’s development agenda for the year.

in addition, key partnerships with development stakeholders 
allowed for the synergies required to drive complex 

agriculturally-driven development programmes and to allow
the agency to access skills and expertise not owned in-house.

in the realisation of these targets the agency’s external 
operations managed to generate 200 of a targeted 150 jobs, 
resulting in the job creation from programming objective 
being exceeded. unmet performance targets will be moved 
to the first quarter on next financial period.

ChRIs hANI deVeLOPmeNt ageNCY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/1509
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gratitude
i would like to thank the CHda board for their leadership 
and guidance throughout the year. my greatest gratitude 
goes to the CHdm leadership, for the funding and continued 
support of our operations.

and, to the CHda employee team, your commitment 
and dedication has been monumental for the current 
achievements of the institution. i thank you in anticipation  
of your support and commitment to the strategic direction 
of the organisation and for your continued efforts as CHda’s 
brand ambassadors.

i therefore look forward to a stimulating and challenging year 
ahead as we break new ground in rolling out an impressive 
programmes and projects portfolio. Let us seek to push 
boundaries, and become a strong force for change in our 
district towards stimulation of our regional economy.

internal Management 
the internal operations for the year focused on the 
strategic objective of the realisation of a viable and proficient 
organisation. Key performance areas on the administration 
and internal operations agenda for the agency in the year 
under review were:

•	 Realisation	of	a	functional	board	and	
 sub-committee structure
•	 Attainment	of	a	favourable	audit	in	2014/2015
•	 Management	of	OPEX	within	budget,	and	raising	of	
 additional non-operational grant funding
•	 Development	of	an	internal	controls	and	policy	environment
•	 Realisation	of	a	functional	internal	audit	function
•	 Development	and	implementation	of	a	comprehensive	
 risk management framework
•	 Strategy	and	consistent	performance

the agency had notable successes, and a number of 
challenges, but performance overall was satisfactory, with the 
realisation of 80% of its performance targets for 2014/2015.

the success was enabled by the staffing of key positions in 
the projects unit, namely the appointment of the Chief finance 
Officer (CfO) as head of the finance and administration 
unit, and three additional interns for financial administration 
assistance. these appointments allowed for the formation 
of a fully-fledged finance unit, to help drive the agency’s 
finance, HR and sCm agenda for the year.

in addition, key partnerships with outsourced internal 
auditors, mazars, and company secretaries, mmV attorneys, 
allowed the agency to access skills and expertise not owned 
in-house.

the agency had an overall satisfactory year in respect 
of performance and attaining set goals and objectives, 
especially given that 2014/2015 was the first year the 
agency would be reporting on predetermined objectives.

as the agency progresses with the implementation of 
projects and programmes, and attains firm project funding 
and implementation milestones, the setting of measurable 
targets and the evaluation of performance will become more 
objective and easily measurable. 
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executive mayor cllr. m koyo 
climbs aboard harvester at Qamata, 

intsika yethu



inkwanca
Local municipality emalahleni

Local
municipality

engcobo
Local

municipality

sakhisizwe
Local

municipality

tsolwana
Local municipality

inxuba Yethemba
Local municipality

Lukanji
Local municipality

intsika Yethu
Local municipality

ChRIs hANI
dISTRIcT MUNIcIPALITY
& The pROVINCe OF The
eAsTeRN CApe

Chris Hani
district municipality

the year was also one for celebration, as it saw the start 
of a solid programming portfolio going forward, hence the 
theme of this year’s annual report being ‘’implementation 
on track…’’. the agency operations were extended to 

include reach in most of the district’s local municipal areas 
through programming in agriculture and agro-processing, 
agricultural value chain development, skills development, 
stakeholder engagement and other Led programmes.

the agency performed well with the help of key development partners in 2014/2015. these partnerships focused 
on shared vision and performance outcomes between stakeholders, as well as financial and technical expertise in 
various CHda programmes.

ESTABLISHMENT OF sTRONg pARTNeRshIps

KIcKSTARTINg sUCCess

ChRIs hANI deVeLOPmeNt ageNCY ANNUAL REPORT 2014/1513



The Agricultural 
Enabler
this year saw the agency positioning itself as a key partner 
in the resuscitation of irrigation schemes in the district, with 
a focus on Qamata and bilatye, and support to Ncorha 
and shiloh. support at the schemes included technical 
assistance in setting up governance structures and 
processes, and mobilisation of community groups to create 
formal institutional arrangements, as well as development 
of various planning documents and feasibility analyses. 
in addition, funding was spent on the acquisition of new 
equipment and implements, and the provision of inputs for 
agricultural activities to boost production.

in addition to this support, the agency was hands on in 
driving mechanisation services for emerging farmers in the 
district through the mechanisation centre at Qamata. 

Lastly, the agency’s agri-business development activities 
brought about the creation of markets for produce from the 
Chris Hani district, with various buyers being identified, and 
offtake agreements being signed.

Supporter of 
local business
most of the agency’s initiatives are geared towards 
improving communities at a socio-economic level through 
support of local businesses.

this can be seen from the involvement with small scale 
produce farmers at the irrigation schemes and surrounding 
villages, as well as through engaging local suppliers 
wherever possible in formal supply chain activities on a daily 
basis. the agency has formed an association with the Chris 
Hani business forum which is a broader business voice 
for small business in the district. this partnership seeks 
to unleash business opportunities and package business 
proposals to help the thriving small business commerce. 
Plans are in place to also forge partnerships with other 
business formation in the district especially the border Kei  
Chamber of Commerce that represents established business  
in the district.

also, the agency practices a preferential procurement policy, 
geared at supporting small businesses, and those owned 
and managed by women, youth or people with disabilities.

Facilitator of skills 
development
CHda has noted the need to build capacity and knowledge 
in the field of development. the agency has been 
administering the Chris Hani bursary fund since 2012/2013 
that amounts to R2 million. the programme is currently 
assisting 20 students from disadvantaged backgrounds from 
throughout the district in their tertiary studies, ranging from 
engineering and mechatronics, to agriculture and tourism, as 
a means of building the skills base and operational capacity 
in the Chris Hani district. these students are pursuing 
their studies in the following institutions; Nelson mandela 
metropolitan university (Nmmu), university of Cape town 
(uCt), university of stellenbosch (usb), university of fort 
Hare (ufH), university of the Western Cape, Walter sisulu 
university (Wsu), Central university of technology (Cut), 
fort Cox College of agriculture and forestry (fCC) and 
grootfontein College of agriculture.

in addition, the agency has facilitated a learnership and 
internship programme with bigen africa on sanitation, water 
and plumbing skills. the next year will focus on placement 
of 175 learners, who have undergone theory and practical 
training in 2014/2015.

The waste champion
as an implementer for the department of environmental 
affairs (dea), the agency is involved in the Lukhanji Waste 
buy-back Centre’s initiative, which is geared at the creation 
of waste collection buy-back centres in the district.

this will assist the local municipality in its waste management 
services, and is envisaged to promote job creation through 
the establishment of waste collection co-operatives.

IN ITs pROgRAMMINg ROLLOUT, 
The AgeNCy TOOk ON The 
MULTI – FACeTeD ROLe OF:
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ZOLILE
DUZe
eXeCUTIVe MANAgeR 
OpeRATIONs
cHRIS HANI dEVELOPMENT Agency

inTroducTion
2014/2015 was an important year for the agency, as it saw 
the agency in its first year of programme implementation. 
it was also a year of changes in the organisation, with 
the advent of new staff and new policies and procedures 
being implemented, as well as a new focus on performance 
objectives. this report section will focus on all agency 
external programming and internal management issues for 
the year 2014/2015.

 the programming and external operations for the year 
focused on the strategic objective of the realisation of viable 
and sustainable economic clusters. 

 key performance areas on the programming agenda for 
the Agency in the year under review were:

•	 Resuscitation	of	irrigation	schemes
•	 Establishment	of	a	fully	operational
 mechanisation centre
•	 Movement	towards	operationalisation	of	existing	grain	silos	

for Qamata
•	 building of the relevant skills base in the district through the 

agency’s administration of the bursary fund, learnership and 
internship programmes, as well as hosting of career exhibitions.

• investment promotions and smme development, and creation 
of new jobs and employment opportunities.

 the agency had notable successes and a number of challenges, 
but performance overall was satisfactory, with the realisation 
of 74% of its performance targets for 2014/2015. 

 the success was enabled by the staffing of key positions in 
the projects unit, namely: the appointment of the executive 
manager Operations (emO) as head of the programming 
unit, the Pm: irrigation schemes and Pm: agri-business 
development positions to drive implementation. these 
appointments allowed for the formation of a fully-fledged 
projects unit, to help drive the agency’s development 
agenda for the year.

 in addition, key partnerships with development stakeholders 
allowed for the synergies required to drive complex 
agriculturally-driven development programmes, and to allow 
the agency to access skills and expertise not owned in-house.

 in the realisation of these targets the agency’s external 
operations managed to generate 200 of a targeted 150 jobs, 
resulting in the job creation from programming objective 
being exceeded. unmet performance targets will be moved 
to the first quarter on next financial period.

pROgRAMMes 
ANd eXTeRNAL 
OpeRATIONs

ZOLiLe duZe
exeCutiVe maNageR OPeRatiONs

CHRis HaNi deVeLOPmeNt ageNCY

28 October 2015
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 key deliverables for the year were:

•	 The	development	of	a	scheme	operating	model,	or	institutional	
framework to guide operational and governing structures at 
the schemes,

•	 The	development	of	 social	 charters	 for	 irrigation	schemes	
and scheme operations within local communities

•	 The	 development	 of	 business	 plans	 on	 production	 and	
implementation going forward for Qamata and bilatye 

•	 The	development	of	production	plans	for	Qamata	and	Bilatye,
•	 The	 provision	 of	 agricultural	 inputs	 for	 the	 harvesting,	

land preparation and planting activities in the 2014/2015 
cropping season, 

•	 The	Identification	of	private	partnerships	for	production

 in addition to the above, the agency committed towards the 
operationalisation of the existing grain silos at Qamata, as 
part of the irrigation scheme production support provided. 
the silos would be crucial in the harvesting and storage of 
grain crops from the irrigation schemes.

 

 Qamata and bilatye
 
 the agency assisted the irrigation schemes with the 

development of their annual production plans, and their 
annual production of maize. a total of 800 hectares were 
targeted for planting and all 800 hectares were planted 
successfully. this was supported by the agency’s support in 
the land preparation activities prior to planting, as well as the 
provision of agricultural inputs (seeds, chemicals, fertiliser) 
during the cropping season, and finally at the harvest 
preparation at the end of June 2015, totaling over R2,9 
million for the year, including repairs and maintenance to 
irrigation centre pivots.

IRRIgATION
ScHEMES

maize crop, Qamata irrigation scheme, Qamata

the CHda has been mandated with the revitalization of the existing irrigation schemes at Qamata, bilatye, Ncorha and 
shiloh. the focus areas of the agency for the year under review were the irrigation schemes at Qamata and bilatye, and 
assisting the other two schemes as and when required. 
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ncorha and 
shiloh

the agency entered into plans to 
assist the shiloh irrigation scheme in 
expanding its existing vineyard by an 
additional seven hectares, to a total 
of 12 hectares, with the intention of 
establishing a winery in the future.

this would be achieved through 
assistance with the sourcing of root 
stock for the wine grape varietals to 
be planted, as well as equipping the 
vineyard with the required equipment 
for expansion. in addition, the agency 
committed to assisting with the required 
equipment and implements for prep- 
aration of the vineyard for planting, as 
well as plant maintenance.

at the end of the year under review, the 
agency had procured over R300 000 
in root stock, and appointed service 
providers for the required equipment 
and implements to the value of over 
R1,100 000.

the agency also committed to 
assisting the two schemes with the 
development of annual financial 
statements for 2014/2015, and the 
development of financial processes 
and standard procedures.

this would allow for the establishment 
of baseline financial information on 
scheme interventions for the agency,  
but far greater, afford the two schemes 
an opportunity to have their opera-
tions reviewed, and assisted to be 
financially accountable and viable 
going forward. this would put them 
in a better position for financial support 
going forward as they would be able  
to demonstrate their financial manage-
ment ability.

a provider was appointed in may 2015 
for the assignment, but delays from 
scheme members resulted in the annual 
financial statements not being finalised by 
end of the financial year. this target was 
therefore moved to the following year.

for all the schemes above, the agency developed a 
comprehensive scheme model or institutional framework 
to govern all operations.

However, due to late filling of key management personnel 
positions, the vacant positions of social facilitators could 
not be filled in the first half of the year for the timely 
development of social charters on the irrigation schemes 

identified. sCm processes were started in may 2015, and 
a timely appointment could not be finalised in time for the 
charters to be finalised by year end. this target has been 
moved to 2015/2016 for completion.

However, the partnership with eCRda enabled the develop- 
ment of social charters for Ncorha irrigation scheme activities.

Vineyard, shiloh irrigation 
scheme, whittlesea

Institutional models and social charters
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the grain silos at Qamata were identified 
as a key factor in the success of CHda’s 
cropping programme.

an operational plan was developed for  
the silos at Qamata and the silos 
were fumigated during the year under 
review in readiness for the upcoming 
harvesting period in July 2015.

 Key partnerships were successfully established with various 
private organisations, which all contributed to the success 
realised at the irrigation scheme intervention during the 
year under review.

	
grain silos, Qamata

Establishment of 
key partnerships

Operationalisation 
of grain silos

 These partnerships were established with the 
 following valuable development stakeholders:

•	 The	 Chris	 Hani	 District	 Municipality	 (CHDM)	 provided	 a	
grant of R2 million towards the expenditure on agricultural 
input costs 

•	 The	 Grain	 Farmers	 Development	 Association	 (GFADA)	
approved a maize cropping subsidy of R1,6 million of 
which R966 000 was received and would be utilised for 
crop insurance and lime in the current financial year, and 
the balance drawn down in 2015/2016

•	 Omnia	Fertilizer	Group	came	on	board	and	offered	emerging	
grain farmers a R6 million facility to access fertiliser in bulk at 
wholesale prices, repayable on harvest and sale of produce 

•	 Farmwise	partnered	with	 the	emerging	 farmers,	and	was	
able to successfully find a market for all grain harvested at 
the going safex market rate

•	 MBB	 Consulting	 assisted	 in	 the	 review	 and	 update	 of	
existing business plans to identify revitalisation business 
plans for the operations at Qamata and bilatye

•	 Eastern	 Cape	 Rural	 Development	 Association	 (ECRDA)	
facilitated the development of social charters at Ncorha

•	 Training	of	irrigation	scheme	personnel	and	co-operatives	

 Was provided by dRdaR, on a skills exchange partnership 
despite the above successes, the irrigation schemes 
programme did not go without challenges. 

 Key challenges faced 
during the year, and 
expected to continue into 
the following years are:

•	Irrigation	infrastructure	is	old	and	requires	
replacement and the current system is not 
economical

•	Access	to	irrigation	water	is	a	problem	since	
farmers have debts with the department of 
Water affairs

•	Community	buy-in	needs	to	be	reinforced	
through social facilitation

18



 in the area of agricultural development, the agency has 
focused on the development of key identified sectors, and 
the development of value chains around them, namely:

•	Livestock
•	Vegetable	production
•	Fruit	production
•	Maize	and	other	grain	crops
•	Forestry

 the development of value chains would assist in the realisation 
of economic spin-offs from secondary industries arising out of 
the production of basic agricultural products in the district. 

 key deliverables for the year were:

• the development of new partnerships to assist with the creation 
of new business ventures in the identified agricultural value chains

•	The	development	of	new	value	chains	in	livestock,	crop	and	
vegetable production and forestry

 the focus of these deliverables would be that of assisting 
emerging farmers with intensification of primary production, 
value addition and market linkages. all value chain initiatives 
are located within irrigation schemes and outside the 
scheme environment.

AgRICULTURAL VALUE 
cHAIN DeVeLOpMeNT

there are also dairy activities at shiloh and Ncorha, in a partnership between the local community members in the second-
ary cooperative and amadlelo. the partnership provides land for grazing, and livestock and vet services to ensure optimal 
production of milk. the partner also assists with the marketing of milk, and proceeds shared by both partners in the trust. 
the success of these dairy activities will pave the way for the planned resuscitation of the now dormant dordrecht Cheese 
factory in 2015/2016.

 livestock Initiatives
 
 the beef industry was a focus area for CHda’s initiatives in livestock development for the year under review. Currently, the 

district has five primary cooperatives involved in beef production and a secondary cooperative responsible for a feedlot and 
abattoir. Nda, NamC, dRdaR and dRdLR are currently assisting the feedlot with feed, infrastructure and vet services, and 
CHCdC is involved in institutional capacity building and governance training for the co-operatives.

 the agency, in partnership with ikhephu secondary Co-op, berlin beef and the masisizane fund, submitted a beef livestock 
value chain development application to the Jobs fund for a total funding of R30 million.

 the remaining R30 million would be invested by the partners berlin beef and the masisizane fund, resulting in a total of R60 
million being fundraised for livestock development activities in 2015/2016.

 this partnership is expected to create a viable market for livestock farmers in the district. in addition, the success of the 
Jobs fund application and implementation will result in further assistance to the sakhisizwe cooperatives operating the 
feedlot, as well as towards operationalising the currently dormant Cala abattoir.

 in addition, the agency is currently providing technical support to the engcobo Local municipality on the development of a 
poultry business plan for implementation in 2015/2016.

 Key challenges to the success of the beef value chain rollout include lack of proper institutional set-up resulting in conflicts 
and lack of cohesion between primary cooperative and secondary cooperative, leadership issues, and lack of administrative 
capacity at secondary cooperative level, operations of the current feedlot, the delays in renovations of Cala abattoir, and the 
farmers entering into agreements without involvement of other stakeholders (ast strategic partnership).
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elliot feedlot, sakhisizwe lm



grain crop 
Initiatives
the buyambo Red Hub was implemented through eCRda 
with the aim of producing sorghum in Lady frere. a total of 
800 hectares of sorghum was planted in November 2014 
with an average of one ton/ha harvested.

CHda as part of the technical committee was requested 
to assist with market facilitation, which resulted in united 
breweries, tiger brands, and PsP showing interest in buying 
of sorghum produce from buyambo. through the agency’s 
facilitation, border seed and PsP trades have resulted in 
sorghum purchases valued at over R700 000.

the agency also assisted with offtake agreements for the 
sale of the maize crop planted in 2014/2015 to be harvested 
in 2015/2016. farmWise would facilitate the sale of maize at 
the applicable safex rate upon harvest.

forestry 
Initiatives
CHdm funded a tree Nursery at Qhumanco Village. the 
main focus was the production of trees for an afforestation 
programme planned for the dm and other districts.

CHdm and CHda facilitated markets for the tree nursery 
to supply Pg bison with 260 thousand seedlings and 
development of a business plan for expansion of the 
nursery to supply more seedlings.

Nda has approved R250,000 for expansion and the 
CHCdC is assisting with institutional capacity building 
and governance training.

fruit and Vegetable Initiatives
fruit
the fruit value chain development initiatives have included 
the agency assisting with the revitalisation and expansion of 
the existing vineyard at shiloh in Whittlesea. 

the expansion is an additional seven hectares to the 
existing five hectares, to result in 12 hectares of vineyard 
being produced. CHda has provided financial support in the 
procurement of chardonnay root stock for planting, as well 
as vineyard equipment and implements and trellising materials.

Plans are underway to develop a business plan in 2015/2016 
for a winery at the irrigation scheme.

also, in a partnership with POmeC, a feasibility study and 
business plan were developed for pomegranates as a high-
value crop opportunity for the district.

However, there may be delays in implementation as studies 
are still underway on identification of a suitable compatible crop.

Vegetables
there were a number of initiatives in vegetable value chain 
development in the year under review.

CHdm, in partnership with the CHCdC, is implementing 
a vegetable value chain initiative called incucop. this is 
based on the incubation model of developing small scale 
or emerging farmers.

to date, 20 tunnels and open field growing initaitives are 
active at tendergate and started producing in december 2104.

Currently, there is construction of 30 tunnels at Lower Lufutha at 
Cala and of a pack-house near Queenstown in partnership 
with the dti. Currently, funding is being sourced for the 
construction of 20 tunnels in Lukhanji Lm, and for financing the 
graduate producers from the incubator at tendergate.

the agency assisted with the development of a business 
plan for the implementation of a butternut project, which 
was submitted to the masisizane fund for funding.

the agency’s partnership with sakata and Potato sa 
has resulted in subsidised feasibility studies on potato 
production in the district and approved donation of seed 
potato for a 12 hectare area, valued at about R360 000. 
Planting of the delivered potatoes is planned for Qamata with 
the assistance of Ntinga development agency’s machinery.
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Tree nursery project, Qhumanco
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MeChANIsATION
CeNTRe AcTIVITIES

 the mechanisation centre at Qamata 
was a CHdm programme handed over 
to the agency for implementation.

 The programme, currently in its first 
year of operations, achieved all its 
objectives for the first year:

•	 Dicla,	the	technical	partner,	carried	out	
operations for the year as per the service 
level agreement

•	 an operational plan was developed for 
the centre for the 2014/2015 year, and 
reviewed and updated for implementation 
in 2015/2016

•	 The	centre	was	officially	 registered	as	
an NPC and a board was appointed by 
the end of the reporting period. board 
activities and training are expected to 
commence in the new year.

 the centre had a budget allocation of 
just over R3 million and all budget was 
spent on operations, including salaries 
and wages for centre staff, safety gear  
and related items, repairs and main- 
tenance of equipment, purchase of  
fuel, spares and inventory for the 
equipment and workshop, and project 
management fees. 

 the centre has provided mechanisation 
and technical support to emerging 
farmers in the areas of Qamata, bilatye 
and Cradock, ranging from the land 
preparation assistance to the planting 
and harvesting assistance.

 in addition, the operationalisation of the 
centre resulted in 18 new jobs being 
created in the appointment of centre 
artisans and equipment operator staff. all 
staff are on three year contracts, renewable 
on performance and achievement of required 
accreditation levels.

 Various training has taken place during 
the year to develop the trainee artisans 
and operators towards full capacity. a 
certification ceremony was held in which 
all 18 new staff who had undergone training 
were handed their first certificates.

 in addition, the center managed to realise 
a turnover of R496 441 in its first year of 
operations. despite the centre making a 
positive impact on emerging farmers in 
the areas of its operation, it is faced with 
a number of challenges that have to be 
resolved so that the centre can grow and 
continue to provide a value add service 
in future:

•	 The	centre	needs	renovations,	as	well	as	
running water and electricity connection.
Renovations are expected to be conducted 
in the next financial period, but delays 
with the water and electrical connections 
could delay matters further 

•	 Approved	 funding	 if	R5	million	 from	
idC was not received in the reporting 
period as expected, reducing planned 
expenditure and operational activities 
planned significantly

•	 Limited	equipment	and	machinery	results	
in a limited service that can be provided 
at any one time and excessive pressure 
on existing equipment. this affects the 
wear and tear on equipment, as well 
as earning potential of the centre, as 
currently most activities are limited to 
within the irrigation schemes

•	 Limited	administrative	staff	compared	to	
the complexity of operations resulted in 
the agency hiring a contract worker for 
financial and administrative assistance to 
the project

•	 Most	activities	are	still	subsidised,	and	
the challenges have a negative impact 
on the possibility of the centre one day 
becoming self-sufficient or profitable.
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Trainee certification ceremony,  
Qamata mechanisation Center
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INVesTMeNT 
pROMOTION ANd 
sMMe dEVELOPMENT

AgeNCy FUNCTION ANd
OTHER LeD ACTIVITIes

 in the area of investment promotion and smme development, 
the agency met all its set targets for the year under review.

 Promotion of chris Hani as a 
preferred investor district

 Investor round table
 the agency, in partnership with the CHdm and CHCdC, 

hosted an investor round table conference in december 
2014. this event invited various development partners and 
stakeholders to the district, and informed them on all investment 
potential and challenges for development in the district.

 the conference was accompanied by site visits to various 
value chain areas of primary production, including the 
irrigation schemes, livestock and dairy production and 
facilities in sakhisizwe, and the dormant elitheni Coal mine 
in emalahleni Local municipality.

 SEZ and agriparks
 the agency, in a partnership with CHdm, Coega and other 

stakeholders, finalised a feasibility study on the proposed 
special economic zone for the Chris Hani district. this seZ 
would assist in the realisation of the district development 
agenda through its enabling infrastructure for value chains 
and rural economic clusters throughout the district, leading 
to economic spinoffs such as job creation, small business 
development and secondary industries.

 a business case was also developed for an agripark in the 
district, and this was presented to the dti and dRdaR 
for consideration. 

 International Linkages and Learning opportunities
 the CeO travelled to india in a delegation consisting of 

various development and agricultural stakeholders. the 
group was attending the 2014 indo-south african Week held 
at various locations in india. 

 the purpose of this visit was to establish international 
linkages with india on possible production export from 
the Chris Hani district on required food stuffs, as well as 
learn about best practice in large scale primary agriculture 
activities centered on rural communities and food parks.

 it has become apparent that the agency cannot solely rely on the Operational grant from the Chris Hani district municipality 
(CHdm) to achieve its goals and objectives. there is thus a secondary focus for innovative sourcing of complementary and 
co-funding opportunities from other sources that include provincial and national government departments, dfi’s and donor 
organisations within the development space.

 in an attempt to raise additional income 
that will be used to finance both opera- 
tional and developmental function, the  
agency has positioned itself for appoint- 
ment as implementing agent for key 
strategic developmental projects at an 
agreed services fee. One project of this 
caliber is the Lukhanji Waste buy-back 
Centres.

 Lukhanji Waste Buy-Back centres:
 the agency was appointed by the 

dea as an implementer in establishing 
five waste buy-back centers for the 
Lukhanji local municipality. 

 sites have been identified at Whittlesea, 
ilinge, ezibeleni, mlungisi and Lessington.

 this programme seeks to provide a 
waste solution for the local municipality, 
whilst looking at community involvement 
at a small business level in the waste 
value chain. significant progress has 
been made to date, with the approval 
of the submitted feasibility study and 
business plan by dea having a potential 
of funding a total of R30 million into the 
Lukhanji waste value chain industry.

 the activities of the project steering 
committee have been on track, with good  
involvement of community members and  
emerging waste entrepreneurs / 
cooperatives. the project concept detail 
and feasibility have been finalised, with 
detailed designs, and first draft of the 
business plan submitted to dea.

 However, challenges were experienced 
resulting in the submission of the 
final business plan for implementation 
funding to dea. the constant review 
and update of planned sites has required 
additional planning work, and ongoing 
amendment of the draft business plan. 
further engagement with the Lukhanji 
Lm and key stakeholders is required to 
ensure no further changes to project 
sites, so final plan can be submitted.

 in addition, the vacant position of 
Pm: special Projects has resulted in 
the agency not meeting its target of 
identifying additional implementation 
programmes on Led.
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skILLs
DeVeLOpMeNT

PROgRAMMES
The Agency has been tasked with the development 
of sector-specific skills in the areas of agriculture, 
engineering, tourism, finance, iT and mining. 

Various activities were conducted in the year under review 
towards the improvement of the district’s skills profile: 

bursary Fund
a total of 20 learners are currently having their tertiary studies 
funded by the mayor’s bursary fund being administered by 
the agency.

the students are enrolled for various qualifications in 
agriculture, mechatronics, engineering, tourism studies and 
it-related fields. 

for the year under review, a total of R1.1 million expenditure 
was realised in the provision of student accommodation, 
school books and stationery, as well as tuition and food 
stipends to bursary fund participants. the learners were also 
provided with laptop computers and bags for their studies. 

a challenge was the limited funding available for meeting 
the planned new bursary fund intake for the 2015 academic 
year. also, less than what was budgeted for was received 
from the CHdm to fund the programme, resulting in the 
agency utilising its own funds to subsidise existing student 
commitments.

the agency also did not meet its target of raising additional 
funding for the bursary fund operations for 2014/2015. 
a comprehensive funding strategy will be developed for the 
next financial period to ensure CHdm bursary funds are 
supplemented for additional support.

career Exhibitions
a total of four career exhibitions were held by the agency 
in engcobo, Cofimvaba, Queenstown and Lady frere in 
2014/2015.

the focus of career exhibitions is on grade 12 learners 
selecting the required areas of study towards filling of scarce 
skills in the district and on attending accredited institutions.

a total of 2 500 learners were welcomed in Cofimvaba,  
1 000 at Queenstown, 2 500 at engcobo and 3 000 in Lady 
frere over each exhibition’s three-day event.

this was a solid turnout, accompanied by a total of 15 
exhibitors ranging from Wsu, damelin, ufH, Wits university, 
uCt, Nmmu, boston College, ikhala fet, Ksd fet, the 
NYda as well as saica and other industry professional bodies.

learnership and 
internship Programmes
in its partnerships with bigen africa and Crimson Co, the 
agency successfully implemented the Water and sanitation 
Learnership and internship programme.

this programme saw a total of 175 youth from the district 
being trained in plumbing, water purification, reticulation 
and supervisory skills. the training covered theory and 
practical training opportunities.

discussions are at advanced stages with Chris Hani 
district municipality engineering department, private 
sector companies and the department of Public Works for 
workplace experience and placement for all the learners.

a key challenge for the year was that approved funding from 
the Construction seta (Ceta) was not received for rollout of 
learning programmes in the year under review as envisaged.

However, funding applications were submitted to
the agriseta, and sasseta.
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chdA offices in Queenstown, lukhanji

28



INTeRNAL 
AcTIVITIES

 

 

NONTEMBEKO
NOMNgANgA
ChIeF FINANCe OFFICeR
cHRIS HANI dEVELOPMENT Agency  

 the internal operations for the year focused on the strategic 
objective of the realisation of a viable and proficient 
organisation. Key performance areas on the administration 
and internal operations agenda for the agency in the year 
under review were:

•	 Realisation	of	a	functional	board	and	subcommittee	structure
•	 Attainment	of	a	favourable	audit	in	2014/2015
•	 Management	of	OPEX	within	budget	and	raising	of	additional	

non-operational grant funding
•	 Development	of	an	internal	controls	and	policy	environment
•	 Realisation	of	a	functional	internal	audit	function
•	 Development	and	implementation	of	a	comprehensive	risk	

management framework
•	 Strategy	and	consistent	performance

 the agency had notable successes and a number of 
challenges, but performance overall was satisfactory, 
with the realisation of 80% of its performance targets 
for 2014/2015.

 the success was enabled by the staffing of key positions in 
the projects unit namely, the appointment of the Chief finance 
Officer (CfO) as head of the finance and administration 
unit and three additional interns for financial administration 
assistance. these appointments allowed for the formation 
of a fully-fledged finance unit to help drive the agency’s 
finance, HR and sCm agenda for the year.

 in addition, key partnerships with outsourced internal auditors, 
mazars, and company secretaries, mmV attorneys, allowed 
the agency to access skills and expertise not owned inhouse.

 unmet performance targets will be moved to the first quarter 
of the next financial period.

NONtembeKO NOmNgaNga
CHief fiNaNCiaL OffiCeR

CHRis HaNi deVeLOPmeNt ageNCY

28 October 2015
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 the agency is governed by its board of directors, as appointed 
by the parent municipality or shareholder.

 the board subscribed to the values of good corporate 
governance and recognises the need to conduct the agency 
with integrity in accordance with generally accepted corporate 
practices. the agency also subscribes to the principles of 
King iii, and is governed by, and complies to:

	 •	 Municipal	Finance	Management	Act
	 •	 Municipal	Systems	Act
	 •	 Companies	Act

 during the year under review, the board of directors 
considers that the agency has complied with the relevant 
aspects of best practice of corporate governance.

 the board comprises of a majority of non-executive 
directors, and meets at least quarterly. the chairperson is 
elected on a three-year basis by the shareholder, and the 
term of office for each member is three years, which may be 
renewable for a second term.

 evaluation and 
 performance
 although individual board members are appointed on 

a three-year term, performance evaluations of the board as 
a whole and of individuals should be reviewed on an annual 
basis. the chairman of the board appraises the performance 
of the CeO.

 the review of the CeO takes place per quarter, but there were 
no board evaluations conducted for the year under review.

 remuneration Philosophy
 the remuneration of non-executive directors is determined 

by the shareholder, in consultation with the board. No  
performance rewards are awarded to non-executive directors, 
with payments limited to sitting and preparation fees, as well 
as travel reimbursements.

 Audit, risk and ethics 
committee

 the audit, Risk and ethics committee is an independent 
advisory committee of the board and is established to assist 
the CHda board to manage the risk and financial affairs of 
the agency. the committee therefore supports the board in 
implementing its oversight responsibility by overseeing and 
reporting to the board on:

•	 The	quality	and	integrity	of	the	Agency’s	AFS
•	 Compliance	with	regulatory,	legal	and	tax	requirements

•	 Accounting	policies
•	 Overall	risk	management
•	 independent auditors opinions and measures for improvement
•	 The	performance	of	the	internal	audit	function

 the committee convened on a quarterly basis as required. 
the committee performed well and conducted all the 
necessary reviews and approvals for the year under review.

 hr and remunerations 
committee

 the HR and Remuneration committee assists the board 
in fulfilling its obligations and oversight responsibility for 
human resources strategies. to this end the committee 
advises the board on:

•	 Ensuring	the	Agency	has	an	effective	organisational	structure	
and competitive human resource and compensation policies 
and practices

•	 Ensuring	appropriate	processes	are	in	place	for	selection,	
evaluation, compensation and succession of senior management

•	 Oversight	of	the	implementation	of	the	Agency’s	performance	
management system, 

•	 General	administration	issues	as	they	affect	all	staff

 the committee convened on a quarterly basis as required. 
the committee performed well and conducted all the 
necessary reviews and approvals for the year under review.

 projects and investment 
committee

 
 the Pfi committee was established to assist the board in 

giving effect to the obligations of CHda in terms of the sLa 
with the CHdm, or shareholder.

 the key deliverable is to promote economic development in 
the district through the realisation of economic clusters, 
as aligned to the sdbiP and idP of the municipality. the 
committee serves to assist the board in identifying high 
impact strategic programmes, as well as the programming 
performance of the agency in meeting in strategic objectives.

 the committee convened on a quarterly basis as required. 
the committee performed well and conducted all the 
necessary reviews and approvals for the year under review

gOVeRNANCe ANd 
OVeRsIghT sTRUCTURes
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stakeholder engagement Qamata
bilatye communities, intsika yethu
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OFFICe 
OF THE 

CeO

the office of the CeO has provided strategic leadership to 
the agency for the 2014/2015 financial year, and manages 
key interaction between agency shareholders, the CHdm, 
its governing structure, the board, as well as its external 
stakeholders and agency management and staff.

the office of the CeO is 
also the key driver of the 

agency’s stakeholder 
engagement and 

communication 
platforms and fora. 

the CeO provides strategic leadership and attends to 
organisational development, shareholder interaction and 
mobilisation of resources, as well as positioning CHda on 
the national policy agenda. the appointment of the CeO 
saw strides being made in strengthening governance, which 
culminated in the establishment of board sub-committees, 
review of board and sub-committee charters, and the review 
of general practices, and the policy environment of the agency.

this also brought about strong emphasis on financial 
management and reporting, people development, brand 
positioning, focused stakeholder engagement and effective 
contract management. through his leadership, the agency 
has successfully managed to implement the strategy and 
the organogram.

The 2014/2015 year has been one of much change, as 
chdA closed the establishment chapter and began the 
first year of programming implementation.
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FINANCe
 CHda received a qualified audit opinion 

in the 2012/2013, and 2013/2014 financial 
periods. given this outcome, a strong 
focus has been put on improving the 
2014/2015 audit opinion through:

•	 staffing of the finance  
and administration department

•	 Improvement	of	internal	 
processes and controls

• improvement of risk management 
systems in the organisation

•	 Development	and	implementation	of	 
a comprehensive audit action plan 
and internal audit strategy for the year

•	 Ongoing	reporting	to	the	Agency’s	
audit, risk and ethics committee

 Staffing in  
finance and 

 Administration
 the year under review saw the 

appointment of a Chief financial Officer 
(CfO), mrs Nontembeko Nomnganga. 
despite arriving towards the end of 
the first half of the year, the arrival  
was timely enough to allow for her to ably  
head up the finance and administration 
unit and implement key changes towards 
readiness for year-end.

 in addition to the CfO, three new intern 
/ contract positions were opened up 
to assist in the financial administration 
required for assisting with the realisation 
of a clean audit.

 the three new interns would assist 
with sCm administration, financial 
administration and project financial 
administration respectively.

 Improvement  
of internal  
controls

 internal controls were not as developed 
as required, due to the agency’s stage 
of maturity.

 
 the year under review saw the approval 

of the amended sCm Policy, in July 
2014, to guide sCm activities for the 
year given sCm audit report queries in 
2012/2013 and 2013/2014.

 the last quarter saw the development 
of new policies to guide operations. 
these included the development of 
a budget Policy, Petty Cash Policy, 
reviewing of the sCm Policy, investment 
Policy and asset management Policy. 
However, the agency did not manage 
to develop a comprehensive funding 
strategy / model / policy to assist in the 
sourcing of additional funding for agency 
programmes, and reduce reliance of 
CHdm grant monies.

 Improvement 
 of risk  
management  
Activities

 the year under review saw the agency 
at the start of implementing a risk 
management framework. in addition 
to policies to help minimise financial 
and operational risk, a risk register was 
developed for the agency’s operations 
every quarter. However, the agency 
failed to review and update the register 
on a monthly basis.

 Audit Action 
plan and 

 internal Audit 
Activities

 an audit action plan was developed 
to address audit report items from 
2013/2014, and monitored by the audit 
committee per quarter. at the close of 
the financial period, the agency had 
resolved over 90% of the action plan 
items, but the remaining items on it 
governance remained unresolved and 
were carried over to the next period.

 mazars, the internal auditors, also 
implemented their approved audit plan 
for the year under review. their contract 
was extended for another 12 months, 
until end may 2016. 

 supply chain 
Management

 during the year under review, a total of 
16 tenders were issued:

•	 Nine	tenders	were	appointed	before	end	
June 2015

•	 One	tender	resulted	in	no	appointment	
after evaluation and adjudication, and

•	 Remaining	tenders	moved	to	the	next	
financial period for award.

 the finance manager is currently 
responsible for sCm, and the short-
staffed sCm function has resulted in 
delays, especially since bid committees 
were appointed in december 2014, given 
unfilled vacant management positions. 
Plans are under way to boost the number 
of staff in sCm to get the finance 
manager the required assistance. this will 
help drive expenditure to required levels.

 supplier payments totaled R11.5 million 
on active awards and contracts.

 despite the improvements in sCm, 
areas of improvement have been 
identified in the agency’s processes 
around contracts management and the 
performance of bid committees.
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human resources
ORgANOgRAM (position & Vacancies)

the agency did not conduct a review of its organogram 
during the year, as focus was on filling vacant positions from 
the 2013/2014 developed and July 2014 approved organogram.

the emO and CfO vacant positions were filled, improving 
the senior management vacancy rate from 50% in 2013/2014 
to 75% in 2014/2015. the position of the Chief investment 
Officer is a medium term goal for filling upon establishment 
of programming operations.

However, despite the recruitment of three new interns 
in finance, and two new project managers, there was an 
overall regression in the vacancy rate of general staff, with 
the resignation of three staff members during the year. two 
existing staff members moved to new positions, which did 
not affect the vacancy rate. all reasons for resignation were 
employees moving to better opportunities.

ADMIN ANd 
CORpORATe 
seRVICes

social
facilitator

ChIeF eXeCUTIVe OFFICeR

executive
assistant

(t.mashologu)

(s.gungwa)

(Outsourced)

(Outsourced)

(Vacant)

(Vacant)

(N.mayekiso)

(f.tiso)

(f.apleni)

(Outsourced)

(N.Nyokana)

(Vacant)

(Vacant)(s.Koyi)

(Z.duze)

(Vacant)

(Vacant)

(m.fihla)

(s.Zangqa) (N.Cingo)

Company
secretariet
and Legal

internal
audit

Chief
Investment
Officer

Chief Financial
Officer

executive Manager
Operations

PmO
administrator

finance/sCm
manager

business 
development 
manager

finance/sCm
administrator

Project
manager:  
special Programs

Project
manager
agribusiness

Project
manager:
irrigation scheme

skills
development
Coordinator

forestry
specialist

HR/ it
Outsourced

skills
development
administrator

Receptionist

Housekeeping
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eMpLOyMeNT eQUITy
As OF 30 JUNe 2016

African Coloured/
Indian

White

Level Male Female N/A N/A

Executive 2 1 0 0

Management 3 1 0 0

Admin / Support 0 4 0 0

5 6 0 0

remuneration 
and benefits
the year under review also saw the review of employee 
packages, with a tasK exercise being conducted by 
deloitte. a staff benefit package was approved for 
implementation. sanlam was appointed to implement the 
staff Provident fund scheme and discovery Health to run 
the employer medical aid group scheme.

skills and staff 
development
the agency conducted a skills profile on employees in 
august 2014 to determine training and development needs.  
However, due to late filling of vacant positions, no staff 
training or development was conducted in the period under 
review. However, staff personal development initiatives 
were conducted, where two administrative support staff 
members were assisted with uNisa studies on project 
management and office administration.

policies
a total of eight new HR and related policies were developed 
ranging from recruitment, to leave, subsistence and 
termination of service. this will be implemented in the new 
financial period 2015/2016.

sTAFF ReMUNeRATION sUMMARy
2014-15 2013-14

Salaries & Wages 5 997 259.00 2 850 374.00

Provident Fund Contributions 157 272.00 -

Medical Aid Contributions 36 339.00 -

Leave Pay Expenditure 174 485.00 58 782.00

Statutory Contributions 24 547.00 14 130.00

Provisions for 13th Cheque - 6 681.00

6 389 902.00 2 929 967.00
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 communication  
and marketing

 during the year, CHda did not manage to communicate 
agency information as efficiently as required.

 the 2013/2014 annual report and strategic framework 
Handbook were the only documents prepared during the 
year, and circulated to stakeholders.

 this external communication shortfall was enabled by the 
fact that:

•	 CHDA	did	not	have	a	designated	PR	and	communications	
service provider in its books. an appointment was made to 
OPeNfORm studio in may 2015

•	 The	Agency	website	was	still	not	 fully	operational,	and	 is	
still being developed for information purposes. 

 it is envisaged that external communications will be enhanced 
with the development of an agency communications plan and 
launch of new website in 2015/2016.

 the website challenges also led to the dissemination of 
sCm information resulting in various deviations being recorded 
on non-adherence to sCm on transactions above R30 000.

 internal communications were facilitated through a notice 
board, internal emails, the development of a shared 
network drive, and weekly operations meetings for all staff.

 information  
Technology

 
 management of the it platform was outsourced to first 

technology group, until end may 2015. Whilst the it 
environment has been fairly stable, management has 
recognised the need for a comprehensive review of the 
overall it situation, taking into account the newly approved 
strategy and growth for the future.

 also, an it governance audit was conducted at the end 
of June 2015, raising key non- compliance issues to be 
addressed on it governance in 2015/2016.

 during the year, hardware and software was purchased 
in line with the growth in operations and staff numbers. 
by keeping abreast of changes in technology, CHda will 
ensure that it is suitably positioned from an it perspective 
to achieve in the future, and maintain business continuity, 
and minimise it risk. 

 

young girls enjoying a laugh at the maize harvest celebrations, Qamata
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performance mangement
2014/2015 was the first year in which performance to 
predetermined objectives was conducted by the agency. 
this included the development and approval of an annual 
Performance Plan in line with the agency’s strategic 
objectives, and sLa with CHdm, and the quarterly monitoring 
of performance in the organisation.

the CHdm assisted the agency in procuring the services of 
a consulting firm, stratdev, to assist in the development of a 
Pms Policy. this policy was approved for implementation by 

the board. However, it was noted that the existing policy does 
not address the issues relating to the collection, collation 
and compilation of agency performance information, and 
will thus be reviewed in next financial period.

also, the agency developed performance contracts for all 
staff for 2014/2015, but quarterly performance was not 
conducted. Performance for 2014/2015 would be conducted 
in quarter 1 of 2015/2016. the annual performance report is 
included as annexure 1

sTRATegIC OBJeCTIVe 1
to create a viable and proficient organisation

key focus areas
•	 Good	corporate	governance
•	 Fundraising	and	resource	mobilisation	
 for programmes
•	 Consistent	organisational	performance

sTRATegIC OBJeCTIVe 3
to facilitate partnership building 
and stakeholder relations

key focus areas
•	 Engagement	with	key	customers	(service	

delivery beneficiaries) and stakeholders (partners 
in development)

sTRATegIC OBJeCTIVe 2
to facilitate the establishment of viable 
and sustainable clusters

key focus areas
•	 Development	of	agriculture	and	agro-processing	

in the district
•	 Development	of	support	infrastructure	and	

mechanisation services
•	 Identification	and	implementation	of	 

non-agricultural Led projects
•	 Building	of	the	appropriate	sector-skills	
 base for Led
•	 Investment	promotion	and	SMME	 

development in the district
•	 Job	creation

the agency’s strategic objectives are aligned to the parent municipality’s idP objectives. these have been secured in a ser-
vice Level agreement (sLa) between the agency and the CHdm, and have served as the basis of structuring the agency’s 
annual Performance Plan (aPP) for the year under review. 

These OVeRARChINg sTRATegIC OBJeCTIVes ARe:

in the pursuit of realising these strategic objectives, the annual performance plan was crafted to incorporate a total of 47 
performance targets, to be informed by an equal number of performance-realisation indicators. Of these 47 targets, 25 were 
allocated to realisation of strategic objective 1, 19 for objective 2 and three for objective 3.

peRFORMANCe RepORT 
As OF 30 JUNe 2015
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 performAnce 
ATTAINEd

 the agency had a productive year, under challenging 
circumstances, and completed most key targets set.  
this is evidenced from the substantial increase in project 
expenditure from the prior years as well as the number 
of fully completed activities / outputs reflected in the 
attached performance table.

 Of the 47 performance targets set, a total of 36 targets 
were realised. this can be further broken down to 20 
of 25 targets met for strategic objective 1 (80%), 14 of 
19 targets met for strategic objective 2 (74%) and two of 
three targets realised for objective 3 (67%).

 this resulted in an average performance of 70% overall, 
with the agency having mostly met its set targets.  this is 
matched by a 62% total budget expenditure rate (actual / 
budget amounts).

 
 unrealised targets for the year have been escalated to the 

annual performance plan for the 2015/2016 year.

 chAllenges 
EXPERIENcEd

 
 Planned / set targets not fully attained were often the 

result of the following:
•	 Delays	in	obtaining	external	funding	and	contracts
•	 Change	in	the	objectives	of	the	project	and	the	resulting	

amendment to planned activities 
•	 Lack	of	staff	in	key	management	positions	and	late	filling	

of these vacancies
•	 Low	numbers	and	late	filling	of	vacant	positions	delayed	

formal sCm processes and affected project expenditure
•	 Lack	 of	 staff	 to	 perform	 planned	 activities	 due	 to	

unplanned staff resignations
 
 it should further be appreciated that the agency’s role is 

that of a facilitator and change management agent. as 
all agency projects are performed in partnership with 
other development role-players and the private sector, 
the implementation and factors affecting such are often 
outside the control of the agency.

 meAsuremenT
 
 as previously mentioned, the agency’s role is that of a 

facilitator and change management agent. in essence, 
the agency aims at influencing other stakeholders and 
role-players to ensure an inclusive and holistic spatial 
development of the Chris Hani district area.

 the majority of the agency’s contribution to projects is 
often allocation of internal resources, e.g. grant-funded 
programming costs, own salaries, use of facilities, traveling, 
workshops, etc. and the management of external consultants.  

 the measurement of the aforementioned is often difficult 
and subjective. However, as part of the agency’s 
improvements to its performance management systems, 
measurable indicators were used as far as possible.

 the percentage completion as expressed in the attached 
table was determined after consideration of the objective, 
outputs, activities (and results thereof) and expenditure 
incurred versus budget allocated.

 conclusion
 the agency had an overall satisfactory year in respect 

to performance and attaining set goals and objectives, 
especially given that 2014/2015 was the first year the 
agency would be reporting on predetermined objectives.

 as the agency progresses with the implementation of 
projects and programmes, and attains firm project funding 
and implementation milestones, the setting of measurable 
targets and the evaluation of performance will become 
more objective and easily measurable.

 detailed information on the realisation of performance 
objectives has been attached in the following summary 
report pages / annexure 1.
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SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual  Objective Summary Number of 
Perf.  

Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. 

Targets

Number of Perf. 
Targets Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend. 
ZAR

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-001 To Create a Viable and Proficient Organisation 25 25 4 16 2 3  R 13 498 589,87  R 10 723 333,25 79%

This programme deals 
with all administrative and 
support functions of the 
Agency, inclusive of running 
/ operating costs and 
overheads

Good Corporate 
Governance

1,1 Functional Board Number of board and sub-
committee meetings held, 
and capacitation done

5 5 3 2 0 0 125%  R 900 027,80  R 885 994,69 98,4%

1,2 Attainment of 
Favourable Audit 
Outcome

Reporting and reduction of 
items in audit action plan

3 3 0 2 1 0 94%  R 844 516,00  R 803 913,12 95,2%

1,3 Manage OPEX Within 
Budget

Tracking of operational 
expenditure within budget

1 1 0 0 1 0 77%  R 11 455 471,97  R 8 796 993,35 76,8%

1,4 Develop Internal 
Policies and 
Procedures

Developed HR , SCM and 
PMS policies, and review of 
S&T and Delegations

5 5 0 4 0 1 80%  R 33 128,10 - 0,0%

1,5 Functional Internal 
Audit

Implementation of internal 
audit plan and minimum 
number of assignments 
conducted

2 2 1 1 0 0 125%  R 215 446,00  R 215 012,53 99,8%

1,6 Risk Management 
Framework 
Developed, 
Implemented and 
Reported Upon 
Quarterly

Risks monitored and 
reported on quarterly

1 1 0 0 0 1 25% - - n/a

1,7 Adopted Institutional 
Strategy and the 
Annual Performance 
Plan

Development of new 
institutional strategy, review 
of strategy and development 
and implementation of APP

4 4 0 4 0 0 100%  R 50 000,00  R 21 419,56 42,8%

Fundraising, 
Capitalisation 
and Resource 
Mobilisation

2,1 Rand Value of 
Funding Leveraged 
in Addition to Grant 
Funding Received

R60million in additional 
funding to be raised in 
addition to grant funds 
received

1 1 0 0 0 1 24% - - n/a

Consistent 
Organisational 
Performance

3,1 PMS Developed and 
Implemented

PMS policy developed and 
organisational and individual 
performance scorecards 
developed

3 3 0 3 0 0 100%  R -    R -   n/a
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SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual  Objective Summary Number of 
Perf.  

Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. 

Targets

Number of Perf. 
Targets Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend. 
ZAR

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-001 To Create a Viable and Proficient Organisation 25 25 4 16 2 3  R 13 498 589,87  R 10 723 333,25 79%

This programme deals 
with all administrative and 
support functions of the 
Agency, inclusive of running 
/ operating costs and 
overheads

Good Corporate 
Governance

1,1 Functional Board Number of board and sub-
committee meetings held, 
and capacitation done

5 5 3 2 0 0 125%  R 900 027,80  R 885 994,69 98,4%

1,2 Attainment of 
Favourable Audit 
Outcome

Reporting and reduction of 
items in audit action plan

3 3 0 2 1 0 94%  R 844 516,00  R 803 913,12 95,2%

1,3 Manage OPEX Within 
Budget

Tracking of operational 
expenditure within budget

1 1 0 0 1 0 77%  R 11 455 471,97  R 8 796 993,35 76,8%

1,4 Develop Internal 
Policies and 
Procedures

Developed HR , SCM and 
PMS policies, and review of 
S&T and Delegations

5 5 0 4 0 1 80%  R 33 128,10 - 0,0%

1,5 Functional Internal 
Audit

Implementation of internal 
audit plan and minimum 
number of assignments 
conducted

2 2 1 1 0 0 125%  R 215 446,00  R 215 012,53 99,8%

1,6 Risk Management 
Framework 
Developed, 
Implemented and 
Reported Upon 
Quarterly

Risks monitored and 
reported on quarterly

1 1 0 0 0 1 25% - - n/a

1,7 Adopted Institutional 
Strategy and the 
Annual Performance 
Plan

Development of new 
institutional strategy, review 
of strategy and development 
and implementation of APP

4 4 0 4 0 0 100%  R 50 000,00  R 21 419,56 42,8%

Fundraising, 
Capitalisation 
and Resource 
Mobilisation

2,1 Rand Value of 
Funding Leveraged 
in Addition to Grant 
Funding Received

R60million in additional 
funding to be raised in 
addition to grant funds 
received

1 1 0 0 0 1 24% - - n/a

Consistent 
Organisational 
Performance

3,1 PMS Developed and 
Implemented

PMS policy developed and 
organisational and individual 
performance scorecards 
developed

3 3 0 3 0 0 100%  R -    R -   n/a

Annexure 1
annual Performance Report

40



SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual  Objective 
Summary

Number of 
Perf. Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. Targets

Number of Perf. 
Targets Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend. 
ZAR

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-001 To Create a Viable and Proficient Organisation 25 25 4 16 2 3  R 13 498 589,87  R 10 723 333,25 79%

This programme deals 
with all administrative and 
support functions of the 
Agency, inclusive of running 
/ operating costs and 
overheads

Good Corporate 
Governance

1,1 Functional Board Number of board 
and sub-committee 
meetings held, and 
capacitation done

5 5 3 2 0 0 125%  R 900 027,80  R 885 994,69 98,4%

1,2 Attainment of 
Favourable Audit 
Outcome

Reporting and 
reduction of items in 
audit action plan

3 3 0 2 1 0 94%  R 844 516,00  R 803 913,12 95,2%

1,3 Manage OPEX  
Within Budget

Tracking of 
operational 
expenditure within 
budget

1 1 0 0 1 0 77%  R 11 455 471,97  R 8 796 993,35 76,8%

1,4 Develop Internal 
Policies and 
Procedures

Developed HR , SCM 
and PMS policies, and 
review of S&T and 
Delegations

5 5 0 4 0 1 80%  R 33 128,10 - 0,0%

1,5 Functional Internal 
Audit

Implementation of 
internal audit plan 
and minimum number 
of assignments 
conducted

2 2 1 1 0 0 125%  R 215 446,00  R 215 012,53 99,8%

1,6 Risk Management 
Framework 
Developed, 
Implemented and 
Reported Upon 
Quarterly

Risks monitored and 
reported on quarterly

1 1 0 0 0 1 25% - - n/a

1,7 Adopted Institutional 
Strategy and the 
Annual Performance 
Plan

Development of new 
institutional strategy, 
review of strategy 
and development 
and implementation 
of APP

4 4 0 4 0 0 100%  R 50 000,00  R 21 419,56 42,8%

Fundraising, 
Capitalisation 
and Resource 
Mobilisation

2,1 Rand Value of 
Funding Leveraged 
in Addition to Grant 
Funding Received

R60million in 
additional funding to 
be raised in addition 
to grant funds 
received

1 1 0 0 0 1 24% - - n/a

Consistent 
Organisational 
Performance

3,1 PMS Developed and 
Implemented

PMS policy developed 
and organisational 
and individual 
performance 
scorecards developed

3 3 0 3 0 0 100%  R -    R -   n/a



SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual  Objective 
Summary

Number of 
Perf. Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. Targets

Number of Perf. 
Targets Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend. 
ZAR

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-001 To Create a Viable and Proficient Organisation 25 25 4 16 2 3  R 13 498 589,87  R 10 723 333,25 79%

This programme deals 
with all administrative and 
support functions of the 
Agency, inclusive of running 
/ operating costs and 
overheads

Good Corporate 
Governance

1,1 Functional Board Number of board 
and sub-committee 
meetings held, and 
capacitation done

5 5 3 2 0 0 125%  R 900 027,80  R 885 994,69 98,4%

1,2 Attainment of 
Favourable Audit 
Outcome

Reporting and 
reduction of items in 
audit action plan

3 3 0 2 1 0 94%  R 844 516,00  R 803 913,12 95,2%

1,3 Manage OPEX  
Within Budget

Tracking of 
operational 
expenditure within 
budget

1 1 0 0 1 0 77%  R 11 455 471,97  R 8 796 993,35 76,8%

1,4 Develop Internal 
Policies and 
Procedures

Developed HR , SCM 
and PMS policies, and 
review of S&T and 
Delegations

5 5 0 4 0 1 80%  R 33 128,10 - 0,0%

1,5 Functional Internal 
Audit

Implementation of 
internal audit plan 
and minimum number 
of assignments 
conducted

2 2 1 1 0 0 125%  R 215 446,00  R 215 012,53 99,8%

1,6 Risk Management 
Framework 
Developed, 
Implemented and 
Reported Upon 
Quarterly

Risks monitored and 
reported on quarterly

1 1 0 0 0 1 25% - - n/a

1,7 Adopted Institutional 
Strategy and the 
Annual Performance 
Plan

Development of new 
institutional strategy, 
review of strategy 
and development 
and implementation 
of APP

4 4 0 4 0 0 100%  R 50 000,00  R 21 419,56 42,8%

Fundraising, 
Capitalisation 
and Resource 
Mobilisation

2,1 Rand Value of 
Funding Leveraged 
in Addition to Grant 
Funding Received

R60million in 
additional funding to 
be raised in addition 
to grant funds 
received

1 1 0 0 0 1 24% - - n/a

Consistent 
Organisational 
Performance

3,1 PMS Developed and 
Implemented

PMS policy developed 
and organisational 
and individual 
performance 
scorecards developed

3 3 0 3 0 0 100%  R -    R -   n/a

Annexure 1
annual Performance Report



SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual Objective Summary Number of 
Perf. 

Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. 

Targets

Number of Perf. 
Targets Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend.
ZAR 

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-002 To Facilitate the Establishment of Viable and Sustainable Clusters 19 19 2 12 1 4  R 19 716 673,09  R 9 820 622,13 50%

This programme is service 
delivery oriented.  The 
programme incorporates 
the Agency's key mandate 
of agriculture and agro-
processing initiatives for 
local economic development 
activities. The programme 
outcome is the creation 
of rural economies, driven 
by sustainable and viable 
agricultural clusters. This 
item incorpoartes activities 
such as irrigation schemes 
operations, agricultural 
mechanisation services, 
infrastructure improvements 
as well as capacitation of 
emerging agri-businesses 
to grow the economy of the 
district.

Development of 
Agriculture and 
Agroprocessing 
in the Chris Hani 
District

4,1 Irrigation Schemes 
Resuscitated to be 
Functional

Setup, planning and technical 
support initiatives with focus 
on 2 irrigation schemes 
Qamata and Bilatye

6 6 0 5 0 1 83%  R 5 924 583,17  R 3 827 080,97 64,6%

4,2 Number of 
Sustainable and 
Viable Enterprises 
Developed in 
Structured 
Partnerships

3 new partnerships developed 
to assist in creation of new 
ventures

1 1 0 1 0 0 100% - - n/a

4,3 New Value Chain 
Identified in 
Livestock, Crop and 
Veg Production and 
Forestry

3 new value chains developed 
in livestock, crop and vegetable 
production, and forestry

1 1 0 1 0 0 100%  R 73 461,00  R 68 767,00 93,6%

Support 
Infrastructure 
Develoment and 
Mechanisation

5,1 Fully Operational 
Mechanisation 
Centre

Maximised operations of the 
mechanisation centre

4 4 1 3 0 0 125%  R 7 000 000,00  R 3 563 488,42 50,9%

5,2 Operationalisation  
of Grain Silos

Operationalisation of Ncora and 
Qamata grain silos in readiness 
for harvesting

2 2 0 2 0 0 100% - - n/a

LED Project 
Implementation

6,1 Implement and 
Identify LED 
Projects

Implementtation of the DEA 
Lukhanji waste project, and 
identification of 1 additional 
project

2 2 0 0 1 1 36%  R 1 400 000,00  R 638 311,00 45,6%

Build the 
Appropriate 
Sector Skills Base 
Required for LED

7,1 Proper 
Administration and 
Management of the 
Bursary Fund

Secure funding for the bursary 
fund from parent municipality 
and third parties

2 2 0 0 0 2 25% -  R 811 984,59 -100,0%

7,2 Skills Development 
Programmes in 
Place

Learnerships to be identified 
and facilitated

1 1 1 0 0 0 133% -   - n/a

7,3 Conducting 
Minimum of 4 
Career Expos

4 career expos to be held 1 1 0 1 0 0 100%  R 224 832,92  R 215 855,34 96,0%

Investment 
Promotion 
and SMME 
Development

8,1 Identify, Assess and 
Package Investment 
Opportunities

3 enterprises identified, 
assessed and packaged

1 1 1 0 0 0 133%  R 9 796,00 - 0,0%

8,2 Promote Chris 
Hani as a Preferred 
Investment District

Investor promotion activities 
and 2 linkages established

3 3 0 3 0 0 100%  R 5 084 000,00  R 695 134,81 13,7%

Job Creation 9,1 Number of New 
Jobs / retained jobs

150 new jobs 1 1 1 0 0 0 133% - - 0,0%



SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual Objective Summary Number of 
Perf. 

Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. 

Targets

Number of Perf. 
Targets Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend.
ZAR 

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-002 To Facilitate the Establishment of Viable and Sustainable Clusters 19 19 2 12 1 4  R 19 716 673,09  R 9 820 622,13 50%

This programme is service 
delivery oriented.  The 
programme incorporates 
the Agency's key mandate 
of agriculture and agro-
processing initiatives for 
local economic development 
activities. The programme 
outcome is the creation 
of rural economies, driven 
by sustainable and viable 
agricultural clusters. This 
item incorpoartes activities 
such as irrigation schemes 
operations, agricultural 
mechanisation services, 
infrastructure improvements 
as well as capacitation of 
emerging agri-businesses 
to grow the economy of the 
district.

Development of 
Agriculture and 
Agroprocessing 
in the Chris Hani 
District

4,1 Irrigation Schemes 
Resuscitated to be 
Functional

Setup, planning and technical 
support initiatives with focus 
on 2 irrigation schemes 
Qamata and Bilatye

6 6 0 5 0 1 83%  R 5 924 583,17  R 3 827 080,97 64,6%

4,2 Number of 
Sustainable and 
Viable Enterprises 
Developed in 
Structured 
Partnerships

3 new partnerships developed 
to assist in creation of new 
ventures

1 1 0 1 0 0 100% - - n/a

4,3 New Value Chain 
Identified in 
Livestock, Crop and 
Veg Production and 
Forestry

3 new value chains developed 
in livestock, crop and vegetable 
production, and forestry

1 1 0 1 0 0 100%  R 73 461,00  R 68 767,00 93,6%

Support 
Infrastructure 
Develoment and 
Mechanisation

5,1 Fully Operational 
Mechanisation 
Centre

Maximised operations of the 
mechanisation centre

4 4 1 3 0 0 125%  R 7 000 000,00  R 3 563 488,42 50,9%

5,2 Operationalisation  
of Grain Silos

Operationalisation of Ncora and 
Qamata grain silos in readiness 
for harvesting

2 2 0 2 0 0 100% - - n/a

LED Project 
Implementation

6,1 Implement and 
Identify LED 
Projects

Implementtation of the DEA 
Lukhanji waste project, and 
identification of 1 additional 
project

2 2 0 0 1 1 36%  R 1 400 000,00  R 638 311,00 45,6%

Build the 
Appropriate 
Sector Skills Base 
Required for LED

7,1 Proper 
Administration and 
Management of the 
Bursary Fund

Secure funding for the bursary 
fund from parent municipality 
and third parties

2 2 0 0 0 2 25% -  R 811 984,59 -100,0%

7,2 Skills Development 
Programmes in 
Place

Learnerships to be identified 
and facilitated

1 1 1 0 0 0 133% -   - n/a

7,3 Conducting 
Minimum of 4 
Career Expos

4 career expos to be held 1 1 0 1 0 0 100%  R 224 832,92  R 215 855,34 96,0%

Investment 
Promotion 
and SMME 
Development

8,1 Identify, Assess and 
Package Investment 
Opportunities

3 enterprises identified, 
assessed and packaged

1 1 1 0 0 0 133%  R 9 796,00 - 0,0%

8,2 Promote Chris 
Hani as a Preferred 
Investment District

Investor promotion activities 
and 2 linkages established

3 3 0 3 0 0 100%  R 5 084 000,00  R 695 134,81 13,7%

Job Creation 9,1 Number of New 
Jobs / retained jobs

150 new jobs 1 1 1 0 0 0 133% - - 0,0%



SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual  Objective 
Summary

Number of 
Perf. Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. Targets

Number of Perf. Targets 
Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend. 
ZAR

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-003 To Facilitate Partnership Building and Stakeholder Relations 3 3 0 2 0 1  R 25 000,00  R 19 911,91 80%

This programme focuses  
on establishing and 
maintaining communication 
channels with external 
parties or key stakeholders

Customer and 
Stakeholder

10,1 Map Stakeholders Stakeholder matrix 
developed and 
partnerships  
entered into

2 2 0 2 0 0 100%  R 25 000,00  R 19 911,91 79,6%

10,2 Develop 
Communications 
and Branding 
Strategy

PR and 
communications 
strategy

1 1 0 0 0 1 0%   -    -   n/a



SO No Strategic Objective Focus Area MO No Performance 
Objective

Annual  Objective 
Summary

Number of 
Perf. Indicators 

Number of 
Perf. Targets

Number of Perf. Targets 
Exceeded

Number of Perf. 
Targets Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets Part 

Achieved

Number of Perf. 
Targets  Not 

Achieved

Annual Average 
Perf. %

 Approved Budget 
ZAR

 Actual Expend. 
ZAR

Actual to 
Budget %

SO-003 To Facilitate Partnership Building and Stakeholder Relations 3 3 0 2 0 1  R 25 000,00  R 19 911,91 80%

This programme focuses  
on establishing and 
maintaining communication 
channels with external 
parties or key stakeholders

Customer and 
Stakeholder

10,1 Map Stakeholders Stakeholder matrix 
developed and 
partnerships  
entered into

2 2 0 2 0 0 100%  R 25 000,00  R 19 911,91 79,6%

10,2 Develop 
Communications 
and Branding 
Strategy

PR and 
communications 
strategy

1 1 0 0 0 1 0%   -    -   n/a

Annexure 1
annual Performance Report
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 board of 
directors

•	 Provides	strategic	direction	and	is	the	accounting	authority	
as per the Companies act. the mfma however stipulates 
that the CeO is accounting officer.

•	 Conducts	adaptation	of	the	strategic	plans,	monitoring	of	
operational and management performance, determination 
of policy and processes to ensure integrity of agency’s risk 
framework and internal controls

•	 Approves	the	Agency’s	director	selection,	appointment	
 and evaluation
•	 Approves	the	Agency’s	communication	policy
•	 Operates	 under	 an	 approved	 board	 charter	 that	 provides	

guidance to the board in undertaking its duties and 
responsibilities. the CeO assumes responsibility for the 
effective management of CHda and the implementation of 
strategy, policy and board objectives

 there was no board training or capacitation carried out in 
the year under review.

23. DIReCTORs’ eMOLUMeNTs

NON-eXeCUTIVe - 2015 Board fees Committees fees Total

Mr M Sigabi 50 231 - 50 231

Mr S Dzengwa 43 000 - 43 000

Mr M Manjezi 74 000 - 74 000

Ms N Ntsubane 52 000 - 52 000

Dr C Beck-Reinhardt 20 188 - 20 188

Ms N Sikeyi 37 000 - 37 000

Mr S Ngqwala 65 000 - 65 000

341 419 - 415 419
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BACk ROW: Mr Mafuza Sigabi, Mrs Nokulunga Skeyi, Mr Simphiwe Dzengwa, Mr Singa Ngqwala
FRONT ROW: Ms Ursula Ntsubane, Mr Mlulani Manjezi (Chairman), Ms Vuyelwa Hlehliso 

(Chairperson: Audit, Risk and Ethics committee), Mr Thukela Mashologu (CEO)

ABseNT: Dr. Claudia Beck-Reinhardt
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MR MLULAMI MANJeZI 
ChAIRpeRsON

Mr Manjezi is a certified director with the  
Institute of Directors of South Africa (IOD SA). 
He holds a Master’s Degree in Business 
Leadership from UNISA, and has participated  
in the Programme for Sustainable Leadership  
from Cambridge University. He completed his  
junior commerce degree at the University 
of Fort Hare.

Mr Manjezi is currently the Chairman of  
the DZ Group (Pty) Ltd, a consulting, trading  
and investment group. Previously, he was  
Divisional Executive of the Rural Development  
Partnerships Division (RDPD) within the 
Development Fund (DF), which is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Development Bank  
of Southern Africa (DBSA), where he also held 
several executive positions over a period  
of 22 years.

He is previously the Chairman of the Advisory  
Management Board of Agriculture and Rural  
Development Research Institute (ARDRI) 
of the University of Fort Hare as well as a 
board member of the Masisizane Fund, an 
institute of the Old Mutual Group. He is  
currently Chairman of the Chris Hani Dev-
elopment Agency’s board. He was also an  
investment committee member of the African  
Rural Enterprise Development (AREED) 
Initiative, an organization that is suppworted 
by the United Nation Foundation and the 
United Nations Environmental Programme.  
Mr Manjezi is currently the acting CEO of 
the Municipal Demarcation Board.

DR. CLAUDIA BeCk-ReINhARDT  
MeMBeR

Born in Konstanz, Germany, Dr Beck- 
Reinhardt holds a Doctorate (PHD) in Public 
Policy and Management, with a focus on 
Regional and Local Economics.  She has 
permanent residency status in South Africa 
based on scarce skills resources.

She has vast experience gained in Germany  
and South Africa through formal work,  
voluntary work and self-employment  activities. 

Dr Beck-Reinhardt has been working at the 
Government Technical Advisory Center 
(GTAC) of National Treasury’s Economic 
Development and International Relations 
portfolio as a senior technical advisor since 
January 2011, and prior to this assignment 
was based at the Eastern Cape Socio - 
Economic Consultative Council (ECSECC).

Her work has been focused on the  
conceptualisation and implementation of 
projects geared towards the provision of 
support to SMME’s and the linking of post 
- schooling competency development with 
the labour market in South Africa.

MRs URsULA NTsUBANe 
MeMBeR

Mrs Ntsubane is currently the CEO of 
Crossover Finance, and organisation 
funded to facilitate the access to funding 
for emerging contractors. Prior to this 
assignment, Ms Ntsubane was the CEO 
of the Construction Industry Development 
Board (CIDB). Over the course of her career 
she has worked on complex infrastructure  
development projects in the Built Environ- 
ment, and later strategic focus on the 
transformation of the construction industry  
through contractor development and govern-
ment capacitation on infrastructure delivery. 

In the past, as Executive Director of Economic  
Development within Ekurhuleni Municipality, 
her major focus was growing the local 
economy through investment in economic 
infrastructure in partnership with the private  
sector and various stakeholders. 

Whilst with the Johannesburg Development  
Agency, Mrs Ntsubane directed multi-million  
rand complex economic infrastructure projects,  
leading teams of project managers, civil  
and structural engineers, architects, quantity  
surveyors, and a range of diverse professions.

Ms. Ntsubane holds a Master’s degree in 
Development Planning from the University 
of the Witwatersrand (WITS), and a junior  
degree in Social Sciences from the University 
of Natal.
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Ms NOkULUNgA skeyI     
MeMBeR

Ms Skeyi hails from Cala in the Chris Hani 
District, and is currently the Provincial 
Manager of the National Development 
Agency (NDA) in the Eastern Cape.  She has 
been working in the sphere of community 
development, with a strong focus on 
livelihood development for the past fifteen 
years across the Eastern Cape Province, of 
which the past thirteen were spent working 
at the NDA.

Ms Skeyi has extensive experience in 
designing, implementing and supporting 
development across the province with  
municipalities, NGOs, cooperatives and  
community institutions, having gained 
initial experience in participatory dev-
elopment approaches in working with 
CALUSA, a development organisation in 
her home town of Cala.

She holds an Honour’s degree in Development 
Studies with UNISA, and is currently pursuing 
a Master’s degree in Development Studies 
at Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University 
(NMMU). She also completed a Management 
Development Programme and Advanced 
Project Management Programme at Rhodes 
University. 

Nokulunga has participated in various 
European Union project monitoring missions 
and is exceptionally passionate about 
cooperative development.

MR sINgA NgQWALA    
MeMBeR

Mr Ngqwala is currently retired, after many 
years spent in the public sector finance, 
and its oversight role. 

He occupied the Office of the Auditor General  
for the Eastern Cape during 1999 and 
2014, occupied the office of Chief Director  
for the EC Department of Treasury, and 
was seconded in various establishment 
and oversight roles. Early in his career, 
he worked for the Transkei Development  
Corporation KPMG, as well as Butterworth 
Municipality in roles ranging from article 
clerk to assistant town treasurer. He has 
also occupied positions in education. 

Mr Ngqwala holds an Honour’s degree in  
Accounting (BCompt) and is currently a 
member of the Institute of Accounting 
Technicians of Southern Africa, the Black  
Management Forum and ABASA, and sits on  
various finance and audit committee struc-
tures in and around the Eastern Cape Province.

MR MAFUZA sIgABI    
MeMBeR

After obtaining his Matric Certificate, Mr 
Sigabi developed his political career while 
working in various sectors. 

In 1976 Mr Sigabi participated in union 
activities and attempted to establish a 
branch of SAAWU at Goodhope Textiles. He 
was actively involved in non-racial sport in 
administrative and political matters under 
the auspices of KADRU (King and Districts 
Rugby Union); in the formation of the Sada 
Resident’s Association, affiliated to the UDF 
in 1987; and, while in the employ of the 
SACC, assisted with the establishment of  
UDF units and ANC branches in Queenstown,  
Molteno, Burgersdorp and Aliwal North. 

Mr Sigabi became Chairperson of the Sada  
Resident’s Association in 1988 and Secretary  
of the UDF Queenstown Unit in 1989. In 
1990 he became Chairperson of the first  
branch of the ANC in Sada where he formed  
branches in Whittlesea and Queenstown.  
Mr Sigabi served as Regional Executive  
Committee member of the ANC-Border 
Region; in the Local Government Negotiating  
Fora in Queenstown and Whittlesea; in the 
Provincial Negotiating Team that achieved 
the establishment of new District Councils 
and Transitional Rural Councils in terms of  
Proclamation R20 of 1995; and as Provincial  
Executive Committee Member of the ANC -  
Eastern Cape, serving on the Local Government  
and Peace and Stability Sub- Committees.
 
In 1995 he was appointed as Chairperson 
of Stormberg District Council until 2000, 
and in 1997 was involved in negotiations 
for the establishment of the Eastern Cape 
Local Government Association (SALGA), 
serving as Deputy Chairperson. 

In 2000, Mr Sigabi was elected as the first 
Executive Mayor for the Chris Hani District 
Municipality, where he served for 10 years. 
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MR sIMphIWe DZeNgWA   
MeMBeR

Mr Simphiwe Dzengwa was born and grew up in 
Zwelitsha, in the Eastern Cape. He holds a Master’s 
Degree in Public Administration - MPA (Financial 
Management) from the Florida Atlantic University in the 
USA and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration 
(MBA) from Rhodes University. He attained his junior and 
honours degrees from the University of the Western 
Cape. He is a registered member of the Institute of Directors 
and has served in various Boards and Audit Committees.

From an early age Mr Dzengwa was involved in various 
leadership positions in student, youth and community 
structures. This laid a solid foundation for his character 
and further engagements in his adult and professional 
life. He has worked extensively in the area of 
government finances and management and generally 
considers himself a developmental activist. 

Mr Dzengwa has extensive experience in government 
having worked with all the three spheres mainly in the 
areas of finance, policy development, capacity building, 
project management, monitoring and evaluation, research 
and innovation, and others. He has also worked in 
senior managerial roles within the private sector and 
has led various initiatives both nationally and internationally.

 Mr Dzengwa’s experience achieved from 
the private sector, government sector 
and self-employment includes:

•	 The	role	of	Regional	Manager	at	DBSA’s	
Development Fund 

•	 The	role	of	Chief	Director	 for	Municipal	
Finances and Performance Management 
at the Department of Provincial and 
Local Government

•	 Head	of	Innovate	Eastern	Cape,	having	
been appointed by DEDEAT under the 
auspices of the ELIDZ to set up and 
operationalise the Innovation Hub as the 
overall champion and coordinator of all 
Eastern Cape innovation initiatives. 

•	 Currently,	Mr	Dzengwa	is	the	Executive	
Director: Municipal Finance at SALGA
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Country of incorporation and domicile
south Africa

Legal form of entity
Municipal entity - state Owned Company

Nature of business and principal activities
Carry out the promotion and implementation of the 
local economic development initiatives and invest-
ment promotion in Chris hani District

Chief executive Officer (CeO)
Mr T Mashologu

Chief finance Officer (CfO)
Mrs N Nomnganga

Registered office
64 prince Alfred street
Queenstown
5320

business address
64 prince Alfred street
Queenstown
5320

Postal address
64 prince Alfred street
Queenstown
5320

bankers
First National Bank

auditors
Auditor-general of south Africa

Company registration number
2012/033437/07

Legislation
These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with generally Recognised Accounting 
practice (gRAp), issued by the Accounting stand-
ards Board in accordance with section 122(3) of the 
Municipal Finance Management Act, No.56 of 2003. 

ChRIs hANI DeVeLOpMeNT AgeNCy
(Registration number 2012/033437/07)
annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

geNeRAL
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the directors are required by the municipal finance 
management act (act No.56 of 2003), to maintain adequate 
accounting records and are responsible for the content 
and integrity of the annual financial statements and 
related financial information included in this report. it is 
the responsibility of the directors to ensure that the annual 
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the 
entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of 
its operations and cash flows for the year then ended. the 
external auditors are engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the annual financial statements and were given 
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

the annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with standards of generally Recognised accounting 
Practice (gRaP) including any interpretations, guidelines and 
directives issued by the accounting standards board.

the annual financial statements are based upon appropriate 
accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

the directors acknowledge that they are ultimately 
responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the entity and place considerable importance 
on maintaining a strong control environment. to enable the 
directors to meet these responsibilities, the accounting 
Officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing 
the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. the 
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities 
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting 
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure 
an acceptable level of risk. these controls are monitored 
throughout the entity and all employees are required to 
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 
entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all 
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. the focus of 
risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, 
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the 
entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the 
entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied 
and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

the directors are of the opinion, based on the information 
and explanations given by management, that the system 
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the 
financial records may be relied on for the preparation of 

the annual financial statements. However, any system of 
internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

the directors have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast 
for the year to 30 June 2016 and, in the light of this review 
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the 
entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

the entity is wholly dependent on the Chris Hani district 
municipality for continued funding of operations. the annual 
financial statements are prepared on the basis that the 
entity is a going concern and that the Chris Hani district 
municipality has neither the intention nor the need to 
liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity.

although the directors are primarily responsible for the 
financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the 
entity’s external auditors.

the external auditors are responsible for independently 
reviewing and reporting on the entity’s annual financial 
statements. the annual financial statements are approved 
for examination by the entity’s external auditors.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 
63 to 92, which have been prepared on the going 
concern basis, were approved by the directors on 30 
November 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr Thukela Mashologu
accounting Office

Mr Mlulami Manjezi
Chairperson of the board

dIREcTORS’ 
RespONsIBILITIes 
ANd AppROVAL
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 JUNe 2015
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REPORT OF THE
INDepeNDeNT AUDITORs
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 JUNe 2015

reporT of The AudiTor-generAl To 
The eAsTern cApe proVinciAl legislA-
Ture And The council of chris hAni 
disTricT municipAliTy on The chris 
hAni deVelopmenT Agency soc (ud)

RepORT ON The FINANCIAL sTATeMeNTs
Introduction
1. i have audited the financial statements of the Chris Hani 
development agency sOC (Ltd) set out on pages 63 to 
92, which comprise the statement of financial position as 
at 30 June 2015, the statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and 
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts 
for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Accounting officer’s responsibility 
for the financial statements
2. the accounting officer is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with south african standards of generally 
Recognised accounting Practice (sa standards of gRaP) 
and the requirements of the municipal finance management 
act of south africa, 2003 (act No. 56 of 2003) (mfma), 
and the Companies act of south africa, 2008 (act No. 71 
of 2008), and for such internal control as the accounting 
officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3. my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audit. i conducted my audit in 
accordance with international standards on auditing. those 
standards require that i comply with ethical requirements, 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

4. an audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. the procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the municipal entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the municipal entity’s internal control. an audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.

5. i believe that the audit evidence i have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6. in my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the Chris 
Hani development agency sOC (Ltd) as at 30 June 2015 
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended, in accordance with sa standards of gRaP and 
the requirements of the mfma, and the Companies act of 
south africa.

emphasis of matters
7. i draw attention to the matters below. my opinion is not 
modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures
8. as disclosed in notes 35 and 36 to the financial 
statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2014 
have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 
2014-15 in the financial statements of the municipal entity 
at, and for the year ended, 30 June 2014.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
9. as disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R257 218 
was incurred by the municipal entity during the year ended 
30 June 2015. this is as a result of interest and penalties 
incurred on late payments.

Irregular expenditure
10. as disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, 
irregular expenditure amounting to R1,54 million was 
incurred by the municipal entity during the year ended 
30 June 2015. this is as a result of non-compliance with 
required procurement processes.
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Additional matters
11 . i draw attention to the matters below. my opinion is not 
modified in respect of these matters.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
12. as part of our audit of the financial statements for the 
year ended 30 June 2015, i have read the directors’ Report, 
the audit Committee’s Report and the Company secretary’s 
Certificate for the purpose of identifying whether there 
are material inconsistencies between these reports and 
the audited financial statements. these reports are the 
responsibility of the respective preparers. based on reading 
these reports i have not identified material inconsistencies 
between the reports and the audited financial statements. i 
have not audited the reports and accordingly do not express 
an opinion on them. 

Unaudited disclosure notes
13. in terms of section 125(2)(e) of the mfma, the entity is 
required to disclose particulars of non-compliance with this 
legislation. this disclosure requirement did not form part of 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, i do 
not express an opinion thereon.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
14. in accordance with the Public audit act of south africa, 
2004 (act No. 25 of 2004) (Pm) and the general notice issued 
in terms thereof, i have a responsibility to report findings on 
the reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected development priorities objectives 
presented in the annual performance report, compliance 
with legislation and internal control. the objective of my 
tests was to identify reportable findings as described under 
each subheading, but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance on these matters. accordingly, i do not express 
an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

predetermined objectives
15. i performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the development objective 2: to facilitate the 
establishment of viable and sustainable clusters on pages 
43 to 44 presented in the annual performance report of the 
municipal entity for the year ended 30 June 2015.

16. i evaluated the reported performance information against 
the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

17. i evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was presented in 
accordance with the National treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported performance was 
consistent with the planned development priorities. i further 
performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets 
were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 
bound and relevant, as required by the National treasury’s 
framework for managing programme performance infor- 
mation (fmPPi).

18. i assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

19. i did not identify material findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported performance information for 
development objective 2: to facilitate the establishment of 
viable and sustainable clusters.

Additional matter
20. although i identified no material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected development objectives, i draw 
attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets
21. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 37 to 
38 and pages 39 to 46 for information on the achievement 
of the planned targets for the year.

Compliance with legislation
22. i performed procedures to obtain evidence that the 
municipal entity had complied with applicable legislation 
regarding financial matters, financial management and other 
related matters. my material findings on compliance with 
specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general 
notice issued in terms of the Pm, are as follows:

strategic planning and performance management
23. the performance of the municipality entity was not 
assessed during the first half of the financial year, taking into 
account the targets set in the service level agreement with 
the parent municipality, as required by section 88(1)(a) 
of the mfma.

24. effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk 
management and internal controls with respect to 
performance information and management was not 
maintained as required by section 95(c)(i) of the mfma.
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Annual financial statements
25. the financial statements submitted for auditing were 
not prepared in all material respects in accordance with 
the requirements of section 122 of the mfma. material 
misstatements of current assets, liabilities, revenue, expenditure 
and cash flow statement identified by the auditors in the 
submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected, 
resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified
audit opinion.

26. the annual return for the year 2014-15 was not filed with 
the Commissioner of the Companies and intellectual Property 
Commission, as required by section 33 of the Companies act 
and prescribed in Companies Regulations 30( 1).

expenditure management
27. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular 
expenditure, as required by section 95(d) of the mfma.

Internal control
28. i considered internal control relevant to my audit of 
the financial statements, annual performance report and 
compliance with legislation. the matters reported below 
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies 
that resulted in the findings on compliance with legislation 
included in this report.

Leadership
29. the financial statements submitted for auditing were 
subject to material amendments. this was as a result of 
effective steps not being implemented and monitored during 
the year to avoid amendments to the financial statements. 
there was still inadequate oversight to ensure consistent 
implementation and monitoring of controls over compliance 
with laws and regulations.

Financial and performance management
30. the finance section is not fully established and as a result 
the controls identified were not adequate for the preparation 
of regular, accurate and complete financial reports. material 
misstatements were identified in the financial statements 
that were submitted for audit.

31. the entity did not have systems in place throughout the 
financial year to monitor compliance with all the applicable 
legislation, as a result non-compliance with laws and 
regulations was not prevented. in addition, inadequate steps 
were taken to prevent and detect the incurrence of irregular 
and fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

governance
32. the municipal entity still had material adjustments to the 
financial statements submitted for audit as well as material 
non-compliance findings. this was as a result of management 
not adequately implementing all recommendations of the 
internal audit unit and the audit committee.

east LONdON
30 November 2015
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in terms of section 30 of the Companies act No. 71 of 2008 as amended and sections 122(1)(2)(3) and 126(2)(3)of the
municipal finance management act No 56. of 2003, the following report is submitted for the year ended 30 June 2015.

1. geNeRAL ReVIeW
there has been no material change in the nature or conduct of the company’s business during the year under review.

the financial statements adequately disclose the results of the operations for the year under review and the state 
of the company’s affairs at 30 June 2015.

there has been no material fact or occurrence since the end of the year under review on which we consider 
it necessary to report.

2. NATURe OF BUsINess
the company has been formed as a local economic development agency of the Chris Hani district municipality 
to develop and promote economic growth in the Chris Hani district.

3. shARe CApITAL/CONTRIBUTIONs FROM OWNeRs
1 000 ordinary shares with a par value of R1 each are held wholly by the Chris Hani district municipality.

4. DIVIDeNDs
No dividends have been proposed or declared during the period under review, nor are any recommended.

5. BOARD OF DIReCTORs
the directors of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: 

dIREcTORS’
RepORT
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 JUNe 2015

Name Nationality

Mr M Sigabi South African

Mr S Dzengwa South African

Mr M Manjezi (chairman) South African

Ms N Ntsubane South African

Dr C Beck-Reinhardt German (permanent resident status)

Ms N Sikeyi South African

Mr T Mashologu South African

Mr S Ngqwala South African
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It has been a time of accelerating
programme implementation and establishment of a
competent operational team that is able and willing to
serve the communities of the district.

“The Agency had 
notable successes”

62



sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL pOsITION 
As AT 30 JUNe 2015

Notes 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR 

Restated* 

AsseTs

CurrenT AsseTs

Cash and cash equivalents 3 4 588 687 2 714 805

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 3 877 154 2 116 976

8 465 841 4 831 781

non-CurrenT AsseTs

Property, plant and equipment 5 260 553 300 332

Intangible assets 6 123 451 90 460

384 004 390 792

TOTAL AsseTs 8 849 845 5 222 573

LIABILITIes

CurrenT LiABiLiTies

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions 7 - 1 217 152

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 8 382 906 509 277

VAT payable 9 3 255 455 1 854 214

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 10 1 132 142 1 263 158

4 770 503 4 843 801

TOTAL LIABILITIes 4 770 503 4 843 801

NeT AsseTs 4 079 342 378 772

Contributions from owner 11 1 000 1 000

Accumulated surplus 4 078 342 377 772

TOTAL NeT AsseTs 4 079 342 378 772
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sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL peRFORMANCe 
As AT 30 JUNe 2015

Notes 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR 

Restated* 

ReVeNUe

revenue from exChAnge TrAnsACTions

Agency services 9 892 165 -

Tender fees 32 550 6 850

Interest received - investment 308 045 124 667

TOTAL ReVeNUe FROM eXChANge TRANsACTIONs 10 232 760 131 517

revenue from non-exChAnge TrAnsACTions
Transfer revenue
CHDM Operational grant 12 15 000 000 9 307 559

TOTAL ReVeNUe 13 25 232 760 9 439 076

eXpeNDITURe
Employee costs 14 (6 389 902) (2 927 951)

Depreciation and amortisation 15 (179 519) (126 346)

Impairment loss 16 (78 359) -

Interests and Penalties 17 (247 932) (290 498)

Lease rentals on operating lease (305 532) (284 920)

Repairs and maintenance (56 817) (2 650)

Project costs 18 (10 865 942) (2 230 669)

General Expenses 19 (3 408 187) (2 479 228)

TOTAL eXpeNDITURe (21 532 190) (8 344 278)

OpeRATINg sURpLUs 3 700 570 1 094 798

sURpLUs FOR The yeAR 3 700 570 1 094 798
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sTATeMeNT OF ChANges IN NeT AsseTs
As AT 30 JUNe 2015

Contributions 
from owner 

ZAR

Accumulated 
surplus

ZAR

Total 
net assets 

ZAR

Opening balance as previously reported 1 000 (715 646) (714 638)

ADJUsTMeNTs

Prior year adjustments - (1 380) (1 380)

BALANCe AT 01 JULy 2013 As ResTATeD* 1 000 (717 026) (716 026)

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year - 1 094 798 1 094 798

Total changes - 1 094 798 1 094 798

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments

1 000 1 094 798 1 094 798

Prior year adjustments - (1 270 459) (1 270 459)

BALANCe AT 01 JULy 2014 As ResTATeD* 1 000 377 772 377 772

ChAnges in neT AsseTs
Surplus for the year - 3 700 570 3 700 570

Total changes - 3 700 570 3 700 570

BALANCe AT 30 JUNe 2015 1 000 4 078 342 4 078 342

Note 11
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CAsh FLOW sTATeMeNT 
As AT 30 JUNe 2015

Note(s) 2015
ZAR

2014
Restated* 

ZAR

CAsh fLows from operATing ACTiviTies

ReCeIpTs

Grants 15 000 000 9 307 559

Interest income 308 045 124 667

Other receipts 8 164 537 174 030

23 472 582 9 606 256

pAyMeNTs

Employee costs (6 261 367) (2 869 169)

Suppliers (14 916 670) (3 925 371)

Interests and Penalties (247 932) (290 498)

(21 425 969) (7 085 038)

NeT CAsh FLOWs FROM OpeRATINg ACTIVITIes 20 2 046 613 2 521 218

CAsh FLOWs FROM INVesTINg ACTIVITIes

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (92 114) (107 616)

Purchase of other intangible assets 6 (80 618) (83 691)

NeT CAsh FLOWs FROM INVesTINg ACTIVITIes (172 732) (191 307)

NeT INCReAse/(DeCReAse) IN CAsh AND CAsh eQUIVALeNTs 1 873 882 2 328 552

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2 714 805 386 253

CAsh AND CAsh eQUIVALeNTs AT The eND OF The yeAR 3 4 588 687 2 714 805
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sTATeMeNT OF COMpARIsON OF BUDgeT AND ACTUAL AMOUNTs
BUDgeT ON CAsh BAsIs

Approved
budget
ZAR

Adjustments
ZAR

Final Budget
ZAR

Actual amounts
on comparable basis

ZAR

Difference
between final

budget and actual
ZAR

Reference
ZAR

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL peRFORMANCe

ReVeNUe

revenue from exChAnge TrAnsACTions

Agency services 17 999 583 - 17 999 583 9 892 165 (8 107 418) 35.1

Tender fees - - - 32 550 32 550 35.2

Interest received - investment - 248 817 248 817 308 045 59 228 35.3

TOTAL ReVeNUe FROM eXChANge TRANsACTIONs 17 999 583 248 817 18 248 400 10 232 760 (8 015 640)

revenue from non-exChAnge TrAnsACTions

Transfer revenue
CHDM Operational grant 15 000 000 - 15 000 000 15 000 000 -

TOTAL ReVeNUe 32 999 583 248 817 33 248 400 25 232 760 (8 015 640)

eXpeNDITURe

Personnel (10 226 500) 3 463 047 (6 763 453) (6 389 902) 373 551 35.4

Depreciation and amortisation - - - (179 519) (179 519) 35.5

Impairment loss - - - (78 359) (78 356) 35.5

Interests and Penalties (5 000) (248 315) (253 315) (247 932) 5 383

Lease rentals on operating lease (326 700) (59 277) (385 977) (305 532) 80 445

Repairs and maintenance (19 000) (47 761) (66 761) (56 817) 9 944

Project costs (16 605 187) (3 516 056) (20 121 243) (10 865 942) 9 255 301 35.6

General Expenses (6 028 788) 2 617 492 (3 411 296) (3 408 186) 3 110

TOTAL eXpeNDITURe (33 211 175) 2 209 130 (31 002 045) (21 532 189) 9 469 856

surpLus / (defiCiT)  Before TAxATion (211 592) 2 457 947 2 246 355 3 700 571 1 454 216

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis as Presented in the Budget and Actual Comparative Statement (211 592) 2 457 947 2 246 355 3 700 571 1 454 216

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL pOsITION

AsseTs

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 102 000 1 675 700 1 777 700 92 114 (1 685 586) 35.7

Intangible assets 85 000 51 000 136 000 80 618 (55 382)

TOTAL AsseTs 187 000 1 726 700 1 913 700 172 732 (1 740 968)

NeT AsseTs 187 000 1 726 700 1 913 700 172 732 (1 740 968)

NeT AsseTs

reserves
Accumulated surplus 187 000 1 726 700 1 913 700 172 732 (1 740 968)
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sTATeMeNT OF COMpARIsON OF BUDgeT AND ACTUAL AMOUNTs
BUDgeT ON CAsh BAsIs

Approved
budget
ZAR

Adjustments
ZAR

Final Budget
ZAR

Actual amounts
on comparable basis

ZAR

Difference
between final

budget and actual
ZAR

Reference
ZAR

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL peRFORMANCe

ReVeNUe

revenue from exChAnge TrAnsACTions

Agency services 17 999 583 - 17 999 583 9 892 165 (8 107 418) 35.1

Tender fees - - - 32 550 32 550 35.2

Interest received - investment - 248 817 248 817 308 045 59 228 35.3

TOTAL ReVeNUe FROM eXChANge TRANsACTIONs 17 999 583 248 817 18 248 400 10 232 760 (8 015 640)

revenue from non-exChAnge TrAnsACTions

Transfer revenue
CHDM Operational grant 15 000 000 - 15 000 000 15 000 000 -

TOTAL ReVeNUe 32 999 583 248 817 33 248 400 25 232 760 (8 015 640)

eXpeNDITURe

Personnel (10 226 500) 3 463 047 (6 763 453) (6 389 902) 373 551 35.4

Depreciation and amortisation - - - (179 519) (179 519) 35.5

Impairment loss - - - (78 359) (78 356) 35.5

Interests and Penalties (5 000) (248 315) (253 315) (247 932) 5 383

Lease rentals on operating lease (326 700) (59 277) (385 977) (305 532) 80 445

Repairs and maintenance (19 000) (47 761) (66 761) (56 817) 9 944

Project costs (16 605 187) (3 516 056) (20 121 243) (10 865 942) 9 255 301 35.6

General Expenses (6 028 788) 2 617 492 (3 411 296) (3 408 186) 3 110

TOTAL eXpeNDITURe (33 211 175) 2 209 130 (31 002 045) (21 532 189) 9 469 856

surpLus / (defiCiT)  Before TAxATion (211 592) 2 457 947 2 246 355 3 700 571 1 454 216

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis as Presented in the Budget and Actual Comparative Statement (211 592) 2 457 947 2 246 355 3 700 571 1 454 216

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL pOsITION

AsseTs

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 102 000 1 675 700 1 777 700 92 114 (1 685 586) 35.7

Intangible assets 85 000 51 000 136 000 80 618 (55 382)

TOTAL AsseTs 187 000 1 726 700 1 913 700 172 732 (1 740 968)

NeT AsseTs 187 000 1 726 700 1 913 700 172 732 (1 740 968)

NeT AsseTs

reserves
Accumulated surplus 187 000 1 726 700 1 913 700 172 732 (1 740 968)
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1. presentation of Annual financial 
statements

The annual financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the 
Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 
of 2003).

These annual financial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting 
and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention as the basis of measurement, 
unless specified otherwise. They are presented 
in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting 
policies, which have been consistently applied 
in the preparation of these annual financial 
statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with 
the previous period.

1.1 presentation currency

These annual financial statements are 
presented in South African Rand, which is the 
functional currency of the entity.

1.2 rounding

The amounts in the annual financial statements 
are rounded to the nearest Rand, unless stated 
otherwise.

1.3 going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been 
prepared based on the expectation that the 
entity will continue to operate as a going 
concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.4 Comparative information

Current year comparatives (Budget)

Budget information in accordance with GRAP 
1 and 24, has been provided in a separate 
disclosure note to these annual financial 
statements.

prior year comparatives

When the presentation or classification of 
items in the annual financial statements is 
amended, prior period comparative amounts 
are also reclassified and restated, unless 
such comparative reclassification and / or 
restatement is not required by a Standard of 

GRAP. The nature and reason for such reclassifi-
cations and restatements are also disclosed.

Where material accounting errors, which 
relate to prior periods, have been identified 
in the current year, the correction is made 
retrospectively as far as is practicable and 
the prior year comparatives are restated 
accordingly. Where there has been a change 
in accounting policy in the current year, the 
adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is 
practicable and the prior year comparatives are 
restated accordingly.

The presentation and classification of items 
in the current year is consistent with prior 
periods.

1.5 significant judgements and 
estimates

The use of judgment, estimates and 
assumptions is inherent to the process of 
preparing annual financial statements. These 
judgements, estimates and assumptions 
affect the amounts presented in the annual 
financial statements. Uncertainties about these 
estimates and assumptions could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or 
liability in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying these accounting 
policies, management has made the following 
judgements that may have a significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. 

1.5 significant judgements and 
estimates (continued) 

estimates

Estimates are informed by historical 
experience, information currently available to 
management, assumptions, and other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. These estimates are reviewed 
on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that 
are not due to errors are processed in the 
period of the review and applied prospectively.

In the process of applying the entity’s 
accounting policies the following estimates, 
were made:

depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on 
property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets are determined with reference to 
the useful lives and residual values of the 
underlying items. The useful lives and residual 
values of assets are based on management’s 
estimation of the asset’s condition, expected 
condition at the end of the period of use, its 
current use, expected future use and the 
entity’s expectations about the availability 
of finance to replace the asset at the end of 
its useful life. In evaluating how the condition 
and use of the asset informs the useful life 
and residual value management considers the 
impact of technology and minimum service 
requirements of the assets.

effective interest rate

The entity uses an appropriate interest rate, 
taking into account guidance provided in 
the standards, and applying professional 
judgement to the specific circumstances, to 
discount future cash flows. The entity used the 
prime interest rate where required.

1.6 financial instruments

initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a 
financial liability in its Statement of Financial 
Position when, and only when, the entity 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. This is achieved through the 
application of trade date accounting.

Upon initial recognition the entity classifies 
financial instruments or their component 
parts as financial liabilities, financial assets 
or residual interests in conformity with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement and 
to the extent that the instrument satisfies the 
definitions of a financial liability, a financial 
asset or a residual interest.

Financial instruments are evaluated, based on 
their terms, to determine if those instruments 
contain both liability and residual interest 
components (i.e. to assess if the instruments 
are compound financial instruments). To the 
extent that an instrument is in fact a compound 
instrument, the components are classified 
separately as financial liabilities and residual 
interests as the case may be.

initial measurement

When a financial instrument is recognised, 
the entity measures it initially at its fair value 
plus, in the case of a financial asset or a 
financial liability not subsequently measured 
at fair value, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 

AccOUNTINg
pOLICIes
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financial asset or financial liability 

1.6 financial instruments (continued) 
subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial 
assets and financial liabilities are measured at 
fair value, amortised cost or cost. All financial 
assets and financial liabilities are measured after 
initial recognition using the following categories:
a) Financial instruments at fair value
•	Derivatives.
•	Compound	 instruments	 that	are	designated	
at fair value i.e. an instrument that includes a 
derivative and a non- derivative host contract.
•	 Instruments	held	for	trading.
•	Non-derivative	 financial	 assets	 or	 financial	
liabilities with fixed or determinable payments 
that are designated at fair value at initial 
recognition.
•	An	investment	in	a	residual	interest	for	which	
fair value can be measured reliably.
•	Financial	 instruments	 that	 do	 not	meet	 the	
definition of financial instruments at amortised 
cost or financial instruments at cost.

b) Financial instruments at amortised cost.

Non-derivative financial assets or non-
derivative financial liabilities that have fixed 
or determinable payments, excluding those 
instruments that the entity designates at fair 
value at initial recognition or are held for trading.

c) Financial instruments at cost.

Investments in residual interests, which do not 
have quoted market prices and for which fair 
value cannot be determined reliably.

The entity assesses which instruments should 
be subsequently measured at fair value, 
amortised cost or cost, based on the definitions 
of financial instruments at fair value, financial 
instruments at amortised cost or financial 
instruments at cost as set out above.

Concessionary loans

The part of the concessionary loan that is a 
social benefit or non-exchange revenue is 
determined as the difference between the fair 
value of the loan and the loan proceeds, either 
paid or received.

After initial recognition, an entity measures 
concessionary loans in accordance with the 
subsequent measurement criteria set out for 
all financial instruments.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
and subsequently stated at amortised cost, 
less provision for impairment. All trade and 
other receivables are assessed at least annually 
for possible impairment. Impairments of trade 
and other receivables are determined in 

accordance with the accounting policy for 
impairments. Impairment adjustments are 
made through the use of an allowance account.

Bad debts are written off in the year in which 
they are identified as irrecoverable. Amounts 
receivable within 12 months from the reporting 
date are classified as current. Interest is 
charged on overdue accounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at 
amortised cost.

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with 
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term 
highly liquid investments that are held with 
registered banking institutions with maturities 
of three months or less and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, 
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand and deposits held on call with banks. 

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value 
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition and are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.

derecognition

financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of 
a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised where:
•	 the	 rights	 to	 receive	 cash	 flows	 from	 the	
asset have expired;
•	 the	 entity	 retains	 the	 right	 to	 receive	 cash	
flows from the asset, but has assumed an 
obligation to pay them in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; or
•	 the	entity	has	transferred	its	rights	to	receive	
cash flows from the asset and either
 - has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or
 - has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the entity has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from an asset and has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor 
transferred control of the asset, the asset 
is recognised to the extent of the entity’s 
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing 
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee 
over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset 
and the maximum amount of consideration 
that the entity could be required to repay. 
Where continuing involvement takes the form 
of a written and/or purchased option (including 

a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the 
transferred asset, the extent of the entity’s  
continuing involvement is the amount of the  
transferred asset that the entity may repurchase, 
except that in the case of a written put option 
(including a cash-settled option or similar provision) 
on an asset measured at fair value, the extent 
of the entity’s continuing involvement is limited 
to the lower of the fair value of the transferred 
asset and the option exercise price.

A financial asset is derecognised at trade 
date, when:

The cash flows from the asset expire, are 
settled or waived;

a) Significant risks and rewards are transferred 
to another party; or

b) Despite having retained significant risks and 
rewards, the entity has transferred control of 
the asset to another entity.

A financial liability is derecognised when 
the obligation is extinguished. Exchanges of 
debt instruments between a borrower and 
a lender are treated as the extinguishment 
of an existing liability and the recognition of 
a new financial liability. Where the terms of an 
existing financial liability are modified, it is also 
treated as the extinguishment of an existing 
liability and the recognition of a new liability.

gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in a 
financial asset or financial liability is recognised 
as follows:
•	A	gain	or	loss	on	a	financial	asset	or	financial	
liability classified as at fair value through 
surplus or deficit is recognised in surplus or 
deficit;
•	For	 financial	 assets	 and	 financial	 liabilities	
carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is 
recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial 
asset or financial liability is derecognised or 
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

offsetting

The entity does not offset financial assets and 
financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position unless a legal right of set-off exists 
and the parties intend to settle on a net basis. 

impairments
All financial assets measured at amortised 
cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment 
review. The entity assesses at the end of each 
reporting period whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired.

For financial assets held at amortised cost:

The entity first assesses whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant 
and individually or collectively for financial 
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assets that are not individually significant. If the 
entity determines that no objective evidence of 
impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, 
it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics 
and collectively assesses them for impairment. 
Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is 
or continues to be recognised are not included 
in the collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the 
impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised (such as 
an improvement in the debtor‘s credit rating), 
the previously recognised impairment loss 
shall be reversed either directly or by adjusting 
an allowance account. The reversal shall not 
result in a carrying amount of the financial 
asset that exceeds what the amortised cost 
would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised at the date the impairment 
is reversed. The amount of the reversal is 
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets held at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has been incurred on an 
investment in a residual interest that is not 
measured at fair value because its fair value 
cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial 
asset and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the current market 
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such 
impairment losses are not reversed.

policies relating to specific financial 
instruments

investments at amortised cost

Investments, which include listed government 
bonds, unlisted municipal bonds, fixed 
deposits and short-term deposits invested in 
registered commercial banks are categorised 
as financial instruments at amortised cost and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Where investments have been impaired, the 
carrying value is adjusted by the impairment 
loss, which is recognised as an expense in the 
period that the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount is charged or credited to the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

investments at fair value

Investments, which represent investments in 
residual interest for which fair value can be 
measured reliably, are subsequently measured 
at fair value.
Gains and losses in the fair value of such 

investments are recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Performance.

investments at cost

Investments at cost, which represent investments 
in residual interest for which there is no quoted 
market price and for which fair value cannot be 
measured reliably, are subsequently measured 
at cost. 

1.7 property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-
current assets (including infrastructure assets) 
that are held for use in the production or supply 
of goods or services, rental to others, or for 
administrative purposes, and are expected to 
be used during more than one reporting period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•	 it	 is	probable	 that	 future	economic	benefits	
or service potential associated with the item 
will flow to the entity; and
•	 the	 cost	 or	 fair	 value	 of	 the	 item	 can	 be	
measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially 
measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is the purchase price and other 
costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Trade discounts and rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the cost  at which the asset 
is recognised. The cost also includes the estimated 
costs of dismantling and removing the asset and 
restoring the site on which it is operated.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value 
as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equip-
ment is acquired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or assets, or a combination 
of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset 
acquired is initially measured at fair value (the 
cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not 
determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying 
amount of the asset(s) given up.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment 
which are expected to be used for more than 
one period are included in property, plant and 
equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand 
by equipment which can only be used in 
connection with an item of property, plant and 
equipment are accounted for as property, plant 
and equipment.

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of 
property, plant and equipment are measured 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Land is not depreciated as 
it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.
Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, 

it derecognises the part of the asset being 
replaced and capitalises the new component.

Subsequent expenditure including major spare 
parts and servicing equipment qualify as 
property, plant and equipment if the recognition 
criteria are met.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
on the straight line basis over their expected 
useful lives to their estimated residual value. 
Components of assets that are significant 
in relation to the whole asset and that have 
different useful lives are depreciated separately. 
The depreciable amount is determined after 
taking into account an asset’s’ residual value, 
where applicable.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods are reviewed at each 
financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, 
if appropriate.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and 
equipment have been assessed as follows:

item  Average useful life
Furniture and fittings 6 years
Office equipment 3 years 
Computer equipment 3 years

The residual value, the useful life and 
depreciation method of each asset are 
reviewed at least at each reporting date. If the 
expectations differ from previous estimates, 
the change is accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an 
annual basis does not require the entity 
to amend the previous estimate unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and 
equipment with a cost that is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is 
recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is 
included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are 
derecognised when the asset is disposed of or 
when there are no further economic benefits 
or service potential expected from the use or 
disposal of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition 
of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
included in surplus or deficit when the item is 
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from 
the derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and 
the carrying amount of the item.
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impairments

The entity tests for impairment where there is 
an indication that an asset may be impaired. An 
assessment of whether there is an indication of 
possible impairment is done at each reporting 
date. Where the carrying amount of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is greater 
than the estimated recoverable amount  (or 
recoverable service amount), it is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount 
(or recoverable service amount) and an 
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

Where items of property, plant and equipment 
have been impaired, the carrying value is 
adjusted by the impairment loss, which is 
recognised as an expense in the Statement of 
Financial Performance in the period that the 
impairment is identified.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment been recognised. 
A reversal of the impairment is recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

derecognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are 
derecognised when the asset is disposed of or 
when there are no further economic benefits or 
service potential expected from the use of the 
asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
value and is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

1.8 intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
•	 is	 separable,	 i.e.	 is	 capable	 of	 being	
separated or divided from an entity and sold, 
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 
either individually or together with a related 
contract, identifiable assets or liability, 
regardless of whether the entity intends to do 
so; or
•	arises	from	binding	arrangements		(including	
rights from contracts), regardless of whether 
those rights are transferable or separable from 
the entity or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-
monetary asset without physical substance. An 
intangible asset is recognised when:
•	 it	 is	 probable	 that	 the	 expected	 future	
economic benefits or service potential that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; 
•	 the	 cost	 or	 fair	 value	 of	 the	 asset	 can	 be	
measured reliably.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through 
a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at 
the date of acquisition is measured at its fair 
value as at that date.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in 
exchange for a non-monetary asset or 
monetary assets or a combination of monetary 
and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item’s fair value is not determinable, 
its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the 
asset(s) given up.

Expenditure on research (or on the research 
phase of an internal project) is recognised as 
an expense when it is incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from development 
(or from the development phase of an internal 
project) is recognised when:
•	 it	 is	 technically	 feasible	 to	 complete	 the	
asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
•	 there	is	an	intention	to	complete	and	use	or	
sell it.
•	 there	is	an	ability	to	use	or	sell	it.
•	 it	 will	 generate	 probable	 future	 economic	
benefits or service potential.
•	 there	 are	 available	 technical,	 financial	 and	
other resources to complete the development 
and to use or sell the asset.
•	 the	 expenditure	 attributable	 to	 the	 asset	
during its development can be measured 
reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
any impairment losses.

The cost of an intangible asset is amortised 
over the useful life where that useful life is 
finite. The amortisation expense on intangible 
assets with finite lives is recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Performance in the 
expense category consistent with the function 
of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are 
not amortised, but are tested for impairment 
annually, either individually or at the cash 
generating unit level. The assessment of 
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 
whether the indefinite life assumption 
continues to be supportable. If not, the change 
in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on 
a prospective basis.

Following initial recognition of the development 
expenditure as an asset, the cost model is 
applied requiring the asset to be carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 
of the asset begins when development  is 
complete and the asset is available for use. It 
is amortised over the period of expected future 
benefit. Amortisation is recorded in Statement of 
Financial Performance in the expense category 
consistent with the function of the intangible 
asset. During the period of development, the 
asset is tested for impairment annually.

Amortisation is provided to write down the 
intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to 

their residual values as follows:

item  useful life
Intangible assets  3 years

The amortisation period, the amortisation 
method and residual value for intangible assets 
with finite useful lives are reviewed at each 
reporting date and any changes are recognised 
as a change in accounting estimate in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

1.9   provisions

Provisions are recognised when:
•	 the	entity	has	a	present	obligation	as	a	result	
of a past event;
•	 it	 is	 probable	 that	 an	 outflow	 of	 resources	
embodying economic benefits or service 
potential will be required to settle the 
obligation; and
•	a	 reliable	 estimate	 can	 be	 made	 of	 the	
obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate 
of the expenditure expected to be required to 
settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is 
material, the amount of a provision is the 
present value of the expenditures expected to 
be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits or service 
potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficits. 

1.10 impairments

The entity tests intangible assets with finite 
useful lives for impairment where there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. An 
assessment of whether there is an indication 
of possible impairment is performed at each 
reporting date. Where the carrying amount 
of an item of an intangible asset is greater 
than the estimated recoverable amount (or 
recoverable service amount), it is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount 
(or recoverable service amount) and an 
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of 
Financial Performance

derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the 
asset is disposed of or when there are no 
further economic benefits or service potential 
expected from the asset. The gain or loss 
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arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
intangible asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
value and is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance.

measurement

An asset’s recoverable amount (or recoverable 
service amount) is the higher of an asset’s or 
cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs 
to sell and its value-in-use. This recoverable 
amount (or recoverable service amount) is 
determined for individual assets, unless those 
individual assets are part of a larger cash 
generating unit, in which case the recoverable 
amount (or recoverable service amount) is 
determined for the whole cash generating unit.

An asset is part of a cash generating unit where 
that asset does not generate cash inflows that 
are largely independent of those from other 
assets or group of assets.

In determining the recoverable amount (or 
recoverable service amount) of an asset 
the entity evaluates the assets to determine 
whether the assets are cash generating assets 
or non-cash generating assets.

For cash generating assets the value in use 
is determined as a function of the discounted 
future cash flows from the asset. Where the 
asset is a non-cash generating asset the 
value in use is determined through one of the 
following approaches:
•	Depreciated	 replacement	 cost	 approach	 –	
The current replacement cost of the asset is 
used as the basis for this
value. This current replacement cost is 
depreciated for a period equal to the period 
that the asset has been in use so that the final 
depreciated replacement cost is representative 
of the age of the asset.
•	Restoration	 cost	 approach	 -	 Under	 this	
approach, the present value of the remaining 
service potential of the asset is determined by 
subtracting the estimated restoration cost of 
the asset from the current cost of replacing the 
remaining service potential of the asset before 
impairment.
•	Service	units	approach	-	the	present	value	of	
the remaining service potential of the asset is 
determined by reducing the current cost of the 
remaining service potential of the asset before 
impairment, to conform with the reduced 
number of service units expected from the 
asset in its impaired state.

The decision as to which approach to use is dependent 
on the nature of the identified impairment.

In assessing value-in-use for cash-generating 
assets, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a 
discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs to sell, other fair value 
indicators are used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations 
are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance in those expense categories 
consistent with the function of the impaired 
asset. An assessment is made at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
If such indication exists, the Entity makes an 
estimate of the assets or cash-generating 
unit’s recoverable amount.

reversal of impairment losses

A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in 
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited 
so that the carrying amount of the asset 
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 
exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset 
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance unless 
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, 
in which case the reversal is treated as a 
revaluation increase. 

1.11 employee benefits

short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits encompasses all 
those benefits that become payable in the short 
term, i.e. within a financial year or within 12 
months after the financial year. Therefore, short 
term employee benefits include remuneration, 
compensated absences and bonuses.

Short term employee benefits are recognised 
in the Statement of Financial Performance 
as services are rendered, except for non-
accumulating benefits, which are recognised 
when the specific event occurs. These short 
term employee benefits are measured at their 
undiscounted costs in the period the employee 
renders the related service or the specific 
event occurs.

defined contribution plans

Contributions made towards the fund are 
recognised as an expense in the Statement 
of Financial Performance in the period that 
such contributions become payable. This 
contribution expense is measured at the 
undiscounted amount of the contribution paid 
or payable to the fund. A liability is recognised 
to the extent that any of the contributions 
have not yet been paid. Conversely an asset is 
recognised to the extent that any contributions 
have been paid in advance. 

1.12 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if 
it transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 

classified as an operating lease if it does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings 
elements, the entity assesses the classification 
of each element separately.

The entity as lessee

recognition

Leases are classified as finance leases 
where substantially all the risks and rewards 
associated with ownership of an asset are 
transferred to the entity through the lease 
agreement. Assets subject to finance leases 
are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position at the inception of the lease, as is the 
corresponding finance lease liability.

Assets subject to operating leases, i.e. those 
leases where substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
lessee through the lease, are not recognised 
in the Statement of Financial Position. The 
operating lease expense is recognised over the 
course of the lease arrangement.

The determination of whether an arrangement 
is, or contains, a lease is based on the 
substance of the arrangement at inception 
date; namely whether fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 
2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 
1 January 2005, in accordance with the 
transitional requirements of iGRAP 3.

measurement

Assets subject to a finance lease, as 
recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position, are measured (at initial recognition) 
at the lower of the fair value of the assets and 
the present value of the future minimum lease 
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition 
these capitalised assets are depreciated over 
the contract term.

The finance lease liability recognised at 
initial recognition is measured at the present 
value of the future minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to initial recognition this liability 
is carried at amortised cost, with the lease 
payments being set off against the capital and 
accrued interest. The allocation of the lease 
payments between the capital and interest 
portion of the liability is effected through the 
application of the effective interest method.

The finance charges resulting from the finance 
lease are expensed, through the Statement of 
Financial Performance, as they accrue. The 
finance cost accrual is determined using the 
effective interest method.
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The lease expense recognised for operating 
leases is charged to the Statement of Financial 
Performance on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. To the extent that 
the straight-lined lease payments differ from 
the actual lease payments the difference 
is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position as either lease payments in advance 
(operating lease asset) or lease payments 
payable (operating lease liability) as the case 
may be. This resulting asset and / or liability 
is measured as the undiscounted difference 
between the straight-line lease payments and 
the contractual lease payments.

derecognition

The finance lease liabilities are derecognised 
when the entity’s obligation to settle the liability 
is extinguished. The assets capitalised under 
the finance lease are derecognised when the 
entity no longer expects any economic benefits 
or service potential to flow from the asset.

The operating lease liability is derecognised 
when the entity’s obligation to settle the liability 
is extinguished. The operating lease asset 
is derecognised when the entity no longer 
anticipates economic benefits to flow from the 
asset. 

The entity as lessor 

recognition

For those leases that meet the definition of a 
finance lease, where the entity is the lessor, 
the entity derecognises the asset subject to 
the lease at the inception of the lease. Along 
with the derecognition of the asset the entity 
recognises a finance lease receivable. Finance 
lease income is allocated to between the 
finance lease receivable and finance income 
using the effective interest rate method and 
the resulting finance income is recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance as it 
accrues.

For those leases classified as operating 
leases the asset subject to the lease is not 
derecognised and no lease receivable is 
recognised at the inception of the lease. Lease 
payments received under an operating lease 
are recognised as income, in the Statement of 
Financial Performance, in the period that the 
income accrues.

The determination of whether an arrangement 
is, or contains, a lease is based on the 
substance of the arrangement at inception 
date; namely, whether fulfillment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 
January 2005, the date of inception is deemed 
to be 1 January 2005 in accordance with the 
transitional requirements of GRAP 3.

measurement

Finance lease receivables are recognised at an 
amount equal to the entity’s net investment in 
the lease. This net investment in the lease is 
calculated as the sum of the minimum future 
lease payments and unguaranteed residual 
value discounted over the lease term at the 
rate implicit in the lease.

Rental Income from operating leases is 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. The difference 
between the straight-lined lease payments and 
the contractual lease payments are recognised 
as either an operating lease asset or operating 
lease liability. An operating lease liability is 
raised to the extent that lease payments are 
received in advance (i.e. the straight-line lease 
payments are more than the contractual lease 
payments). The operating lease asset and / or 
operating lease liability are measured as the 
undiscounted difference between the straight-
line lease receipts and the contractual lease 
receipts.

derecognition

Finance lease receivables are derecognised 
when the entity’s right to the underlying cash 
flows expire or when the entity no longer 
expects economic benefits to flow from the 
finance lease receivable.

Operating lease liabilities are derecognised 
when the entity’s obligation to provide 
economic benefits or service potential under 
the lease agreement expires. Operating lease 
assets are derecognised when the entity’s right 
to the underlying cash flows expire or the entity 
no longer expects economic benefits to flow 
from the operating lease asset.

1.13 revenue from exchange 
transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to 
revenue that accrues to the entity directly in 
return for services rendered or goods sold, the 
value of which approximates the consideration 
received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, 
rebates and discounts.

recognition

Revenue from exchange transactions is only 
recognised once all of the following criteria 
have been satisfied:
•	The	 entity	 retains	 neither	 continuing	
managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the goods sold;
•	The	 amount	 of	 revenue	 can	 be	 measured	
reliably; and
•	 It	 is	 probable	 that	 the	 economic	 benefits	
or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the entity and the costs 
incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising out of situations where the 
entity acts as an agent on behalf of another 
entity (the principal) is limited to the amount 
of any fee or commission payable to the entity 
as compensation for executing the agreed 
services. 

measurement

Revenue from exchange transactions is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable taking into account the 
amount of any trade discounts and volume 
rebates allowed by the entity.

expenditure from exchange transactions

Expenses directly associated with the 
generation of exchange revenue are 
recognised in the same period as the revenues 
are recognised, rather than in the period in 
which the expenses are incurred.

rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving 
the rendering of services can be estimated 
reliably, revenue associated with the 
transaction is recognised by reference to the 
stage of completion of the transaction at the 
reporting date. The outcome of a transaction 
can be estimated reliably when all the following 
conditions are satisfied:
•	 the	 amount	 of	 revenue	 can	 be	 measured	
reliably;
•	 it	 is	 probable	 that	 the	 economic	 benefits	
or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the entity;
•	 the	stage	of	completion	of	the	transaction	at	
the reporting date can be measured reliably; 
and
•	 the	 costs	 incurred	 for	 the	 transaction	 and	
the costs to complete the transaction can be 
measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeter-
minate number of acts over a specified time 
frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line 
basis over the specified time frame unless 
there is evidence that some other method 
better represents the stage of completion. 
When a specific act is much more significant 
than any other acts, the recognition of revenue 
is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving 
the rendering of services cannot be estimated 
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the 
extent of the expenses recognised that are 
recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference 
to the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date. Stage of completion is 
determined by services performed to date as 
a percentage of total services to be performed.
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interest income

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity 
assets yielding interest or similar distributions 
is recognised when:
•	 It	 is	probable	that	 the	economic	benefits	or	
service potential associated with the transaction 
will flow to the entity, and
•	The	amount	of	the	revenue	can	be	measured	
reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, 
using the effective interest rate method.

1.14 revenue from non-exchange 
transactions

Non-exchange transactions are transactions 
that are not exchange transactions.

Revenue from non-exchange transaction 
arises when the entity either receives value 
from another entity without directly giving 
approximately equal value in exchange or gives 
value to another entity without directly receiving 
approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
is generally recognised to the extent that 
the related receipt or receivable qualifies for 
recognition as an asset and there is no liability 
to repay the amount. 

measurement

An asset that is recognised as a result of 
a non-exchange transaction is recognised 
at its fair value at the date of the transfer. 
Consequently, revenue arising from a non-
exchange transaction is measured at the fair 
value of the asset received, less the amount of 
any liabilities that are also recognised due to 
conditions that must still be satisfied.

Where there are conditions attached to a grant, 
transfer or donation that gave rise to a liability 
at initial recognition, that liability is transferred 
to revenue as and when the conditions 
attached to the grant are met.

Grants without any conditions attached are 
recognised as revenue in full when the asset 
is recognised, at an amount equalling the fair 
value of the asset received.

Interest earned on the investment is treated 
in accordance with grant conditions. If it is 
payable to the funder it is recorded as part of 
the creditor.

exchange revenue

Grants, transfers and donations received or 
receivable are recognised when the resources 
that have been transferred meet the criteria 
for recognition as an asset and there is not 
a corresponding liability in respect of related 
conditions.

expenditure relating to non-exchange 
transactions

Expenses directly associated with the 
generation of non-exchange revenue are 
recognised in the same period as the revenues 
are recognised, rather than in the period in 
which the expenses are incurred.

1.15 Translation of foreign currencies

foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially 
accounted for at the rate of exchange ruling 
on the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of 
creditors or on reporting of creditors at rates 
different from those at which they were initially 
recorded are expensed.

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted 
for at the spot rate of the exchange ruling on 
the date of the transaction.

Gains and losses arising on the translation 
are dealt with in the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the year in which they occur.

1.16 surplus/deficit

gains and Losses

Gains and losses arising from fair value 
adjustments on investments and loans, and 
from the disposal of assets, are presented 
separately from other revenue in the Statement 
of Financial Performance.

Income, expenditure, gains and losses are 
recognised in surplus or deficit except for the 
exceptional cases where recognition directly in 
net assets is specifically allowed or required by 
a Standard of GRAP.

1.17 value Added Tax

The entity accounts for Value Added Tax on the 
invoice basis.

1.18 unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that 
has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is 
not in terms of the conditions of an allocation 
received from another sphere of government 
or organ of state and expenditure in the form 
of a grant that is not permitted. Unauthorised 
expenditure is accounted for as an expense in 
the Statement of Financial Performance and 
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted 
for as income in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. 

1.19 irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is 
contrary to the Municipal Finance Management 
Act (No.56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act 
(No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers 

Act (No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of 
the entity’s supply chain management policies. 
Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised 
expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted 
for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

1.20 fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
expenditure that was made in vain and would 
have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
accounted for as expenditure in the Statement 
of Financial Performance and where recovered, 
it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in 
the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.21 recovery of unauthorised, 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure

The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on 
legislated procedures, and is recognised when 
the recovery thereof from the responsible 
officials is probable. The recovery of 
unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure is treated as other income.

1.22 post-reporting events

Events after the reporting date are those 
events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the reporting date and the date 
when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
•	 those	 that	 provide	 evidence	 of	 conditions	
that existed at the reporting date (adjusting 
events after the reporting date);
and
•	 those	 that	 is	 indicative	 of	 conditions	 that	
arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting 
events after the reporting date).

The entity will adjust the amounts recognised 
in the financial statements to reflect adjusting 
events after the reporting date once the event 
occurred.

The entity will disclose the nature of the 
event and an estimate its financial effect or a 
statement that such estimate cannot be made 
in respect of all material non-adjusting events, 
where non-disclosure could influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of the financial statements.

1.23 related parties

The entity has processes and controls in place 
to aid in the identification of related parties. A 
related party is a person or an entity with the 
ability to control or jointly control the other 
party, or exercise significant influence over 
the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that 
is subject to common control, or joint control. 
Related party relationships where control 
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exists are disclosed regardless of whether any 
transactions took place between the parties 
during the reporting period.

Where transactions occurred between the 
entity any one or more related parties, and 
those transactions were not within:
•	normal	 supplier	 and/or	 client/recipient	
relationships on terms and conditions no 
more or less favourable than those which it is 
reasonable to expect the entity to have adopted 
if dealing with that individual entity or person in 
the same circumstances; and
•	 terms	 and	 conditions	 within	 the	 normal	
operating parameters established by the 
reporting entity’s legal mandate.

Further details about those transactions are 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
Information about such transactions is disclosed 
in the financial statements. 

1.24 Budget information

The annual budget figures have been 
presented in accordance with the GRAP 
reporting framework. A separate statement 
of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts, which forms part of the annual 
financial statements has been prepared. The 
comparison of budget and actual amount 
will be presented on the same accounting 
basis, same classification basis and for the 
same entity and period as for the approved 
budget. The budget of the entity is taken for 
a stakeholder consultative process as part of 
the parent municipality and upon approval the 
approved budget is made publicly available.

Material differences in terms of the basis or 
timing have been disclosed in the notes to 
the annual financial statements. The most 
recent approved budget by Council is the final 
budget for the purpose of comparison with the  
actual amounts. 
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2.New standards 
and interpretations
2.1   sTANDARDs AND INTeRpReTATIONs eFFeCTIVe AND ADOpTeD IN The CURReNT yeAR

the entity did not adopt any standards or interpretations in the current year.

2.2   sTANDARDs AND INTeRpReTATIONs IssUeD, BUT NOT yeT eFFeCTIVe

the entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published 
and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2015 or later periods:

standard/ Interpretation: effective date:
years beginning on or after

gRaP 109:  accounting by Principals and agents                   No effective date has been 
determined by the minister of finance.

gRaP 18: segment Reporting 01 april 2015

gRaP 105: transfers of functions between entities 
under common control

01 april 2015

gRaP 106:  transfers of functions between entities 
not under common control

01 april 2015

gRaP 107: mergers                                                                 01 april 2015

gRaP 20: Related parties                                                        01 april 2016

gRaP32: service Concession arrangements: grantor           01 april 2016

gRaP108: statutory Receivables                                            01 april 2016

igRaP17:  service  Concession  arrangements  where  
a grantor Controls a significant Residual interest in an asset

01 april 2016

the aggregate impact of the above standards and interpretations will not be material.

2.3   sTANDARDs AND INTeRpReTATIONs NOT yeT eFFeCTIVe OR ReLeVANT

the following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2015 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:

standard/ Interpretation: effective date:
years beginning on or after

igRaP 11: Consolidation – special purpose entities 01 april 2015

igRaP 12: Jointly controlled entities – Non-monetary
contributions by ventures

01 april 2015

gRaP 6 (as revised  2010): Consolidated and separate
financial statements

01 april 2015

gRaP 7 (as revised 2010): investments in associates 01 april 2015

gRaP 8 (as revised 2010): interests in Joint Ventures 01 april 2015

the aggregate impact of the initial application of the statements and interpretations 
on the entity’s annual financial statements is expected not to be material.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. CAsh AND CAsh eQUIVALeNTs
2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

CAsh AND CAsh eQUIVALeNTs CONsIsT OF

Cash on hand 2 700 5 002

Bank balances 3 773 141 2 527 131

Saving accounts 812 846 182 672

4 588 687 2 714 805

THE ENTITy HAD THE FOLLOWING BANK ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNT NUMBeR / 
DesCRIpTION

BANk sTATeMeNT BALANCes CAsh BOOk BALANCes

30 June 2015 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2015 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

FNB MAIN 62363654156 594 403 98 920 135 637 594 403 98 920 135 637

FNB SKILLS 62396085899 1 180 970 702 157 019 1 180 970 702 157 019

FNB INV 623 789 429 18 812 846 182 672 90 341 812 846 182 672 90 341

FNB DEA 62457856296 1 527 332 1 457 633 - 1 527 332 1 457 636 -

FNB CRED 8812712910085001 - (125) (125) - (125) (125)

FNB CALL 62541851574 1 650 226 - - 1 650 226 - -

TOTAL 4 585 987 2 709 802 382 872 4 585 987 2 709 805 382 872

4. TRADe AND OTheR ReCeIVABLes FROM 
NON-eXChANge TRANsACTIONs
Operational Grant Receivable (CHDM) 1 479 331 2 015 877

Project fund debtors 2 371 729 -

Other receivables
Prepayments

3 351
-

-
77 356

Deposits 22 743 23 743

3 877 154 2 116 976
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5. pROpeRTy, pLANT AND eQUIpMeNT
2015 2014

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value

Computer equipment 296 440 (193 308) 103 132 240 566 (105 843) 134 723

Furniture and fittings 223 248 (88 828) 134 420 199 111 (54 327) 144 784

Office equipment 36 750 (13 749) 23 001 24 760 (3 935) 20 825

TOTAL 556 438 (295 885) 260 553 464 437 (164 105) 300 332

ReCONCILIATION OF pROpeRTy, 
pLANT AND eQUIpMeNT - 2015

Opening balance Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Computer equipment 134 723 55 928 - (87 518) 103 133

Furniture and fittings 144 784 24 137 - (34 501) 134 420

Office equipment 20 825 12 049 - (9 873) 23 001

300 332 92 114 - (131 892) 260 554

ReCONCILIATION OF pROpeRTy, 
pLANT AND eQUIpMeNT - 2014

Computer equipment 141 889 75 278 (12 884) (69 560) 134 723

Furniture and fittings 169 178 12 178 (3 799) (32 773) 144 784

Office equipment 3 802 20 160 - (3 137) 20 825

314 869 107 616 (16 683) (105 470) 300 332

pLeDgeD As seCURITy

None of the entity’s property, plant and equipment is pledged as security.

a register containing the information required by section 63 of the municipal finance management act No. 56 of 2003 is 
available for inspection at the registered office of the entity.

6. INTANgIBLe AsseTs
2015 2014

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying value Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying value

Intangible assets                                     194 309 (70 858) 123 451 113 691 (23 231) 90 460

ReCONCILIATION OF 
INTANgIBLe AsseTs - 2015 Opening balance Additions Amortisation Total

Intangible assets                                                                                        90 460             80 618           (47 627)         123 451

ReCONCILIATION OF 
INTANgIBLe AsseTs - 2014 Opening balance Additions Amortisation Total

Intangible assets                                                                                        27 644             83 691           (20 875)           90 460

pLeDgeD As seCURITy
None of the entity’s intangible assets is pledged as security.
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7. Trade and other payables from 
non-exchange transactions 2015

ZAR
2014
ZAR

CHDM: Skills Fund - 42 018

CHDA Liability to Skills Fund - 246 450

Liability to educational institutions - 928 684

- 1 217 152

8. Trade and other payables from 
exchange transaction

2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Trade payables 126 343 270 469

Other payables - 20 174

Leave pay accrual 225 123 100 539

Payroll payables 16 429 101 313

Provision for Workmens compensation 5 967 2 016

Lease payable 9 041 8 085

Provision for 13th Cheque - 6 681

382 906 509 277

9. VAT payable 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

VAT payable 3 255 455 1 854 214

As at 30 June 2015 all VAT returns for the current reporting period were submitted to SARS.

11. Contributions from owner 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

AUThORIseD

1 000 Ordinary shares of par value of R1 each 1 000 1 000

IssUeD

1 000 Ordinary shares of par value of R1 each 1 000 1 000

10. Unspent conditional grants and receipts 
UNspeNT CONDITIONAL gRANTs AND ReCeIpTs COMpRIses OF:

2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

unspenT CondiTionAL grAnTs And reCeipTs
Grain Farmers Development Association 477 362 -

Chris Hani District Municipality - Irrigation Schemes 29 933 -

Department of Environmental Affairs - Waste Management Programme 624 847 1 263 158

1 132 142 1 263 158

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financial statements and an indication of other forms of government 
assistance from which the entity has directly benefited; and

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised.

See note for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government. 
These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised. 
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12. government grants and subsidies 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

CHDM Operating grant 15 000 000 9 307 559

CONDITIONAL AND UNCONDITIONAL

Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received:

gRAIN FARMeRs DeVeLOpMeNT AssOCIATION

Current-year receipts 966 000 -

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (488 638) -

477 362 -

Conditions still to be met - remaining liabilities (see note 10).

ChRIs hANI DIsTRICT MUNICIpALITy - IRRIgATION sCheMes

Current-year receipts 2 983 583 -

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2 953 650) -

29 933 -

Conditions still to be met - remaining liabilities (see note 10).

DepARTMeNT OF eNVIRONMeNTAL AFFAIRs - 
WAsTe MANAgeMeNT pROgRAMMe

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1 263 158 -

Current-year receipts - 1 263 158

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (638 311) -

624 847 1 263 158

Conditions still to be met - remaining liabilities (see note 10).

13. Revenue 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Agency services 9 892 165 -

Tender fees 32 550 6 850

Interest received - investment 308 045 124 667

CHDM Operational grant 15 000 000 9 307 559

25 232 760 9 439 076

The AMOUNT INCLUDeD IN ReVeNUe ARIsINg FROM 
eXChANges OF gOODs OR seRVICes ARe As FOLLOWs:
Agency services 9 892 165 -

Tender fees 32 550 6 850

Interest received - investment 308 045 124 667

10 232 760 131 517

The AMOUNT INCLUDeD IN ReVeNUe ARIsINg FROM 
NON-eXChANge TRANsACTIONs Is As FOLLOWs:
Taxation revenue
Transfer revenue

CHDM Operational grant 15 000 000 9 307 559
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14. employee Costs 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Salaries and wages - CTC 5 997 259 2 850 374

Medical aid - company contributions 36 339 -

Statutory - UIF levies 20 595 12 114

WCA 3 952 2 016

Leave pay expense 174 485 58 782

Defined contribution plans 157 272 -

Provision for 13th cheque expense - 6 681

6 389 902 2 929 967

ReMUNeRATION OF ChIeF FINANCe OFFICeR

Annual Remuneration including social contributions 626 542 -

ReMUNeRATION OF The ChIeF eXeCUTIVe OFFICeR

Annual Remuneration including social contributions 1 204 057 137 134

Allowances - 36 666

1 204 057 173 800

ReMUNeRATION OF ChIeF OpeRATIONs OFFICeR

Annual Remuneration including social contributions 566 908 627 692

Bonus - 52 308

566 908 680 000

15. Depreciation and amortisation 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Property, plant and equipment 179 519 126 346

16. Impairment of assets 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

IMpAIRMeNT LOss

Other receivables from non-exchange revenue 78 356 -

Impairment loss was due to prepayments that could not be traceable as it relates to previous 
financial year and existance cannot be established and deposits that were overstated.]

[Disclose the following information for the aggregate impairment losses and the aggregate reversals 
of impairment losses recognised during the period for which no information has otherwise been disclosed:]

The main classes of assets affected by impairment losses are:

The main classes of assets affected by reversals of impairment losses are:

The main events and circumstances that led to the recognition of these impairment losses are as follows:

The main events and circumstances that led to the reversals of these impairment losses are as follows:
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17. Interests and penalties 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

South African Revenue Services (SARS) 247 932 290 498

18. project costs 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Annual Report 147 723 22 547

Career Exhibitions 215 855 64 449

Consulting - 53 257

Strategic Projects 13 273 -

Corporate research 199 981 15 000

CHDA - Irrigation Schemes Expenditure 316 382 -

CHDA - Crop Production Expenditure 35 750 11 211

CHDA - Forestry Development Expenditure 33 017 -

Other Events and Programmes - SEZ 614 559 -

Investment Conference - 1 662 572

CHDA - Livestock Development Expenditure - 1 511

Planning Activities - Phase 1 638 311 152 861

Strategic Planning and Review 21 420 108 227

CHDM - Mechanisation centre expenditure 2 000 090 1 760

GFADA - Maize subsidy expenditure 488 644 -

Skills Facilitation - 1 274

Stakeholder Engagement 19 912 136 000

CHDM - Irrigation schemes expenditure 2 953 651 -

IDC - Mechanisation centre expenditure 1 563 398 -

CHDM - Bursary fund expenditure 1 107 566 -

NPC - Mechanisation centre own funds expenditure 496 411 -

10 865 943 2 230 669
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19. general expenses 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Accounting fees 297 357 323 906

Advertising 75 113 29 000

Auditors remuneration 721 568 470 627

Bank charges 19 617 8 614

Cleaning 6 595 7 638

Consulting and professional fees 32 304 149 693

Donations - 3 799

Entertainment 1 986 -

Insurance 25 984 20 535

Conferences and seminars 20 105 -

IT expenses 108 063 61 620

Postage and courier 6 591 1 776

Printing and stationery 170 894 80 632

Security 30 420 5 925

Software expenses 38 029 44 701

Staff welfare 18 440 5 210

Subscriptions and membership fees 1 321 1 008

Telephone and fax 10 404 -

Travel - local 532 809 319 129

Travel - overseas 80 576 -

Write Off 32 051 12 884

Electricity 25 425 18 125

Rates - 1 898

Other Board expenses 404 766 237 805

Board Fees 480 228 285 678

Staff Gifts and Welfare 598 1 350

Staff Training and Development 8 777 4 235

Recruitment costs 231 919 324 038

HR/Payroll services 26 247 56 814

Other expenses - 2 591

3 408 187 2 479 231
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20. Cash generated from operations 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Surplus 3 700 571 1 094 798

ADJUsTMeNTs FOR:

Depreciation and amortisation 179 519 126 346

Impairment deficit 78 359 -

Disposal of Assets - 16 663

ChANges IN WORkINg CApITAL:

Trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions (1 838 538) (1 095 978)

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions (126 371) 100 796

VAT 1 401 241 1 155 301

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions (1 217 152) (139 866)

Unspent conditional grants and receipts (131 016) 1 263 158

2 046 613 2 521 218

21. FRUITLess AND WAsTeFUL eXpeNDITURe 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Opening balance 33 575 13 508

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 257 218 96 916

Less: Amounts resolved - (76 849)

Less: Amounts writtern off (290 793) -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting resolution - 33 575

ANALysIs OF AMOUNT WRITTeRN OFF

- Current 290 793 33 575

- Capital - -

290 793 33 575

ANALysIs OF CURReNT yeARs’s 
FRUITLess AND WAsTeFUL eXpeNDITURe
Interest and penalties incurred on late payment 247 932

Booking fees resulting from cancellation of flight N/A tickets 9 286

257 218

The above fruitless and wasteful expenditure has been incurred due to the non-submission and/or the late submission of returns for payroll 
levies as a result of the lack of internal control and capacity during the reporting period. The booking fees are for re-bookings made as a result 
of no- shows and cancellations of flight tickets.
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22. IRRegULAR eXpeNDITURe 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Opening balance 5 940 463 1 985 761

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 1 547 417 3 954 702

Less: Prior year amounts written off (5 940 463) -

Less: Current year amounts written off (1 547 417) -

- 5 940 463

DeTAILs OF IRRegULAR eXpeNDITURe – CURReNT yeAR

Non compliance with SCM procedures 130 285

Bid processes not followed 1 287 718

Procurement processes not followed 129 414

1 547 417

DeTAILs OF IRRegULAR eXpeNDITURe WRITTeN OFF

Previous years 5 940 463

Current year Text 2 1 547 417

7 487 880

23. DIReCTORs’ eMOLUMeNTs 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

NON-eXeCUTIVe - 2015 Board fees Committees fees Total

Mr M Sigabi 50 231 - 50 231

Mr S Dzengwa 43 000 - 43 000

Mr M Manjezi 74 000 - 74 000

Ms N Ntsubane 52 000 - 52 000

Dr C Beck-Reinhardt 20 188 - 20 188

Ms N Sikeyi 37 000 - 37 000

Mr S Ngqwala 65 000 - 65 000

L Galada - 19 000 19 000

V Hleliso - 73 000 73 000

J Mbawuli - 28 000 28 000

G Rasmeni - 18 808 18 808

341 419 138 808 480 227

the rates paid to the board are in line with the rates approved by the Parent municipality (Chris Hani district municipality). 
No other allowances were paid to board members.
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24. AUDIT Fee ACCRUAL 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

506 556 470 627

Internal audit 215 013 -

Current year audit fees (721 569) (470 627)

- -

25. pAye & UIF DeDUCTIONs
Opening balance 84 884 17 031

Current year payroll deductions 1 576 801 554 492

Amount paid - current year (1 582 425) (469 608)

Amount paid - prior year (84 884) (17 031)

pAYe & uif payable (receivable) (5 624) 84 884

26. peRFORMANCe BONUses
There we no performance bonuses due nor paid by the entity during the reporting period because there we no assessments done.

27. sUppLy ChAIN MANAgeMeNT/ 
NON-COMpLIANCe WITh MFMA
Non-compliance paragraph/s:

•	A	supplier	was	used	beyond	the	contract	period	and	beyond	contract	scope	(Section	116(3)	of	MFMA).
•	The	implementation	of	the	SCM	Policy	was	not	reviewed	annually	(Supply	Chain	Management	Regulation	3(1)(b)).
•	A	member	of	a	bid	evaluation	committee	was	a	member	of	a	bid	adjudication	committee	(Supply	Chain	Management	Regulation	29	(4)).
•	Winning	Bidder	did	not	submit	proof	that	Municipal	rates	are	not	in	arrears	(Supply	Chain	Management	Regulation	38(1)(d)(i)	).
•	No	declaration	of	interests	or	Tax	Certificates	(Section	44	Supply	Chain	Management	Regulations)
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28. ReLATeD pARTIes 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Relationships Chris Hani district municipality - CHdm

parent municipality Chris Hani Co-Operative development Centre

Related entities mayibuye trust

all members of the board of directors and key management personnel of the entity are considered related parties

ReLATeD pARTy BALANCes 
Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade payable) regarding related parties

Grant Receivable - CHDM 429 331 2 015 877

Skills Fund Receivable (Liability) -  CHDM 811 985 (42 020)

CHDA Liability to Skills Fund - CHDM - (246 450

1 241 316 1 727 407

ReLATeD pARTy TRANsACTIONs

income received from /(expenses paid to) related parties
Operational Grant - CHDM

15 000 000 9 307 559

CHDM Irrigation Schemes 4 983 583 -

19 983 583 9 307 559

Related party transactions with mayibuye trust and Chris Hani Co-operative development Centre were at arm’s length thus 
according to gRaP 20.33, are exempt from the disclosure requirement of related party transactions per gRaP 20.27, and 
thus have not been disclosed.

88



29. eVeNTs AFTeR The RepORTINg DATe
there are no known events after the reporting date. 

30. Commitments

AUThORIseD CApITAL eXpeNDITURe

Already approved and contracted

Capital expenditure 5 469 868 -

Total capital commitments

Already approved and contracted 5 469 868 -

AUThORIseD OpeRATIONAL eXpeNDITURe

Already approved and contracted

Operational expenditure 299 225 1 903 965

Total operational commitments

Already approved and contracted 299 225 1 903 965

TOTAL COMMITMeNTs

Total commitments

Authorised capital expenditure 5 469 868 -

Authorised operational expenditure 299 225 1 903 965

5 769 093 1 903 965

OpeRATINg LeAses - As Lessee (eXpeNse)

minimum lease payments due
within one year 331 865 302 750

in second to fifth year inclusive 38 232 64 097

370 097 366 847

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for office buildings and for printers. Leases are negotiated 
for term of five years for the printers and three years for the office buildings.

Rentals for office buildings have an escalation clause of 8% per annum over a period of 3 years, whereas rentals for printers 
have an escalation clause of 10% per annum over a period of five years.

a new lease agreement for office buildings has been concluded with aL2 Property trust from 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 
with no escalation clause.
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32. Risk management

LIQUIDITy RIsk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing 
review of future commitments and credit facilities as well as negotiating trance transfers timely from the parent municipality.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement  of 
financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 30 June 2015
Less 

than 1 year
Between 

1 and 2 years
Between 

2 and 5 years
Over 

5 years

Trade and other payables (due no later than in one month) 376 940 - - -

At 30 June 2014
Less 

than 1 year
Between 

1 and 2 years
Between 

2 and 5 years
Over 

5 years

Trade and other payables (due no later than in one month) 3 574 153 - - -

CReDIT RIsk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, loans and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high 
quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

FINANCIAL AsseTs eXpOseD TO CReDIT RIsk AT yeAR eND WeRe As FOLLOWs: 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

financial instrument
Trade debtors 2 829 808 2 116 976

Cash and cash equivalents 4 585 715 2 714 805

31. Medical Aid contributions
the entity paid medical aid contributions of R36 339 (2014: R nil) during the reporting period.
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35. prior period errors

In the previous financial years, intangible assets were overstated by R812. The amount was discovered after inspecting the fixed asset register. 
The amount was adjusted retrospectively.

The lease straightlined amount was erroneously calculated in the previous financial years. The error was discovered in the current year and 
management decided to correct the error retrospectively.

In the previous financial year, an amount of R1 263 158 was recognised as revenue from Agency services. The amount was supposed to have 
been recognised as unspent conditional grants and receipts. The management has decided to correct the error retrospectively.

Some of the general expenses were understated in the previous financial year. The expenses were identified and therefore the error corrected.

34. Budget differences

MATeRIAL DIFFeReNCes BeTWeeN BUDgeT AND ACTUAL AMOUNTs

34.1 The Agency anticipated to receive funds as per the agreement signed with different stakeholders but not all the funders honoured the 
promises. IDC promised to fund mechanisation centre R5 million but they only finalised the funding process in June 2015 and funds 
were only transferred in July 2015

34.2 Tender fees were not budgeted for as the income was realised only when there were tenders advertised and sold

34.3 Interest income budgeted for is less than the actual amount received. This is due to the favourable interest earned from the banks

34.4 The underspending is due to resignations and vacancies not filled during the financial year

34.5 Depreciation and Impairment were not budgeted for in the current financial year

34.6 Under expenditure on project cost is due to funders not honouring their commitments and on some of the programs it is late 
appointment of service providers resulting outstanding commitments

34.7 Under expenditure on PPE was due to delays in procurement of vehicles and property for office use. The funds will be rolled over to 
2014/15 financial year

33. Reconciliation of statement of budget 
surplus with net cash generated from 
operating, investing and financing activities

2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the net cash generated from operating, 
investing and financing activities:

OpeRATINg ACTIVITIes

Actual amount as presented in the budget statement 2 246 355 2 521 218

Timing differences (199 742) -

Net cash flows from operating activities 2 046 613 2 521 218

INVesTINg ACTIVITIes

Actual amount as presented in the budget statement (1 913 700) (191 307)

Timing differences 1 740 968 -

Net cash flows from investing activities (172 732) (191 307)

Net cash generated from operating, investing and financing activities 1 873 881 2 329 911
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36. Comparative figures 2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.
The effects of the reclassification are as follows:

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL peRFORMANCe

IT support costs - (67 853)

Postage and courier - 1 776

Security - 5 925

Software expenses - 44 701

Electricity - 18 125

Rates - 1 898

General expenses - (4 572)

37. Contingent Liabilities

The entity might be liable for interests and penalties on workmen’s compensation with the Department of Labour which the entity has not 
submitted ever since its inception in 2013. The entity is still in the registration process with department of labour. The potential financial effect 
would be approximately R 798.00 from interest and penalties.

38. Deviation from sCM processes
2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

sUppLy ChAIN MANAgeMeNT RegULATIONs 
In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation 
from the Supply Chain Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by the CEO and 
noted by board. The expenses incurred as listed hereunder have been condoned by the 
board and detailed reasons have been furnished to the board.

INCIDeNT

CHDA Website was not functional 1 080 487 -
Sole Supplier 462 881

Other Exceptional Cases 3 466 009

5 009 377

35. prior period errors (Continued)

The CORReCTION OF The eRRORs ResULT 
IN ADJUsTMeNTs As FOLLOWs:

2015
ZAR

2014
ZAR

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL pOsITION -

Decrease in intangible assets - (812)

Increase in lease payables - (3 093)

Increase in unspent conditional grants and receipts - (1 263 158)

Increase in Provision for Workmes Compensation - (2016)

net effect on opening accumulated surplus - (1 269 079)

sTATeMeNT OF FINANCIAL peRFORMANCe

Decrease in Agency fees - (1 263 158)

Increase in depreciation and amortisation -  (812)

Decrease in lease rentals on operating leases -  1 478

Increase in general expenses -  (4 571)

Increase of Employee Related Costs (2016)

net effect on surplus/deficit for the year - (1 269 079)
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06
COMpANy 

seCReTARy
fOR tHe YeaR eNded 30 JuNe 2015

elitheni coal mine, emalahleni



DeCLARATION By The COMpANy seCReTARy

section 88(2)e of the Companies act 71 of 2008 requires a company 
secretary to certify whether the company has filed required returns 
and notices in terms of the act, and whether all such returns and 
notices appear to be true, correct, and up to date.

i hereby confirm, in my capacity as company secretary of the 
Chris Hani development agency (CHda) that for the financial year 
2014/2015, the company did not file the required returns and notices 
in terms of the Companies act with CiPC.  as a result, i am unable 
to confirm the accuracy and correctness of any such declarations.

RepORT OF The 
cOMPANY SEcRETARY
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 JUNe 2015

MRS unAThi mkiZe
COMpANy seCReTARy
cHRIS HANI dEVELOPMENT Agency

unathi mkize, Company secretary
Chris Hani development agency

28 October 2015
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NOTes 
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RegisteRed Name
Chris Hani development
agency sOC Ltd

RegisteRed
OffiCe addRess
64 Prince alfred street
Queenstown, 5320
eastern Cape
south africa

teLePHONe NumbeR
045 838 2195

fax NumbeR
045 838 5944

emaiL addRess
thukela@chda.org.za

Website addRess
www.chda.org.za

exteRNaL auditORs
the auditor general,
south africa (agsa)
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